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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Good morning. I am

          3  Council Member Noach Dear, and I chair the Committee

          4  on Transportation.

          5                 Three serious crashes involving

          6  casino tour buses in New Jersey took place within

          7  five days at the end of December of 1998. Eight

          8  people lost their lives in the most serious

          9  accident, 14 more were injured.

         10                 The Transportation Committee is

         11  concerned because passengers on these buses were

         12  from New York City. Moreover, bus passengers

         13  relinquish control over vehicle operation, and are

         14  entitled to maximum protection.

         15                 While these accidents may be a

         16  coincidence, it would be a wiser course to take this

         17  startling sequence as a warning.

         18                 A complete review of policies and

         19  procedures involving bus safety is needed. If a

         20  pattern exists to bus accidents, then we should

         21  identify the causes.

         22                 Buses have a low fatality rate: while

         23  thousands die every year from motor vehicle

         24  accidents, bus passenger deaths all over the nation

         25  have always been less than 100 people a year.
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          2                 However, different types of buses are

          3  associated with different types of deaths. School

          4  buses, for example, typically have fatalities when

          5  passengers enter or leave the bus. Motorcoaches

          6  involved in intercity travel have fatalities that

          7  result from ejecting passengers during an accident,

          8  especially rollover accidents. This pattern gives us

          9  hope we reduce bus passenger deaths.

         10                 Common sense suggests that if a

         11  passenger is strapped in, then the passenger will

         12  not be ejected. I believe seat belts are a good idea

         13  for buses that travel long distances and as a result

         14  we are now drafting legislation dealing with that

         15  issue and we hope to have a hearing on that very

         16  soon.

         17                 Fortunately the federal government is

         18  about to make recommendations on this issue and

         19  could reach the same conclusion.

         20                 In the next month or two, the

         21  National Transportation Safety Board will make

         22  recommendations regarding bus safety. With federal

         23  action close at hand, I believe the wisest course

         24  for the federal government to do is to implement new

         25  safety standards.
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          2                 So, we will see what they do, but if

          3  they don't act and it takes too long of a time for

          4  them to act, then of course we have the

          5  responsibility to act immediately.

          6                 Accordingly, I will recommend that we

          7  revise resolution 579 and call upon the President to

          8  act quickly and have the United States Department of

          9  Transportation implement the recommendations of the

         10  National Transportation Safety Board.

         11                 I also want to add that there were a

         12  lot of recommendations that we had which really

         13  looks toward not legislation, but basically to slow

         14  these buses down. We know, all of the evidence that

         15  so far has come out of the last few accidents, is

         16  that the buses were driving excessive speed.

         17                 We also know that there has been some

         18  media attention to that, watching how these buses

         19  fly from New York to New Jersey and going over the

         20  speed limit, sometimes 20 to 30 miles an hour. We

         21  also know that they put a lot of people in danger.

         22  And we also have information that is all coming out

         23  now about how drivers are not really adhering to the

         24  laws that exist today with regard to rest and how

         25  much time they are allowed to drive a bus, operate a
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          2  bus.

          3                 We have a difficult problem,

          4  particularly on weekends, evening hours, when the

          5  long roadways in New Jersey take you for a long

          6  ride, and obviously it is not an exciting route, so

          7  obviously bus drivers tend to get a little tired for

          8  driving so long and people are obviously put at

          9  risk.

         10                 We have been asking both the State

         11  Police of New York and New Jersey to immediately

         12  crack down and do a tough enforcement on these

         13  buses, and I am glad to see that there is some

         14  enforcement now and New Jersey reacted by saying

         15  that they are going to do that type of enforcement.

         16                 We also suggested that the drivers

         17  give a special driver defense course. And I

         18  understand over the weekend, I have heard from news

         19  reports, that people in Atlantic City have gotten

         20  together and are doing that with their bus drivers,

         21  and one of the things they are going to emphasize is

         22  slow them down.

         23                 And there is a whole host of issues

         24  that we are looking at in addition to the seat

         25  belts, including that of special point system like
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          2  we require of New York City transit bus drivers,

          3  that if they accumulate on their drivers licenses

          4  more than eight points, they are required to take a

          5  special course, and then if they hit ten points

          6  their licenses become suspended. We are looking to

          7  do the same thing here for these drivers. If we have

          8  to enact it by local law we shall do that.

          9                 And the same would be to require each

         10  of these drivers, a special defense course, when

         11  they get their license, and a refresher course every

         12  18 months so that we know that these drivers are

         13  realizing that we are watching them and that they

         14  also understand that safety is a very important

         15  issue.

         16                 We understand that there may be

         17  shortage of bus drivers, may be a shortage of

         18  companies, of doing this type of business, but that

         19  doesn't make it a good enough reason for us to put

         20  these people at risk and to have the fatalities that

         21  we had a few weeks ago.

         22                 I can't believe that it took

         23  unfortunately these accidents, I guess fatalities,

         24  where people died will bring headlines and will

         25  bring it to the attention of the people who should
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          2  have done the enforcement. But to allow buses to

          3  travel down the Garden State Parkway 80 miles an

          4  hour is really, really, I think really outrageous.

          5                 We need to make sure that there is

          6  appropriate enforcement.

          7                 So, today the Council is going to

          8  have an oversight hearing, the beginning of many

          9  hearings. Because I am concerned about safety of

         10  people traveling, not only to Atlantic City, but

         11  these are the very same companies, including

         12  Academy, which my kids go on, go to summer camp, and

         13  I don't want to hear about any problems with those

         14  buses.

         15                 Also, our seniors go on these buses,

         16  charter buses, for many day trips and many other

         17  groups as well, and I want to make sure that they

         18  are safe. And the only way they can be safe is that

         19  they appear to the travel speed limits, as well as

         20  the seat belts and make sure they operate safely.

         21                 Also we are asking, and if we have to

         22  do it legislatively we will do it, but I hope the

         23  companies are smart enough to do that, is to put a

         24  number down on -- you see this every so often -- on

         25  the bus outside, the telephone number, inside, where
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          2  people can complain and call the company and tell

          3  them that this bus was driving recklessly, this

          4  particular driver was driving recklessly, because I

          5  don't think any company wants to have bus drivers

          6  that drive recklessly.

          7                 So, I think it is important that they

          8  cooperate also, as well, in this effort.

          9                 What I am concerned about, and I have

         10  the list somewhere, I am concerned that we did send

         11  out letters to other individual companies to come

         12  here to testify, and they obviously decided not to

         13  attend. I wish I had the subpoena power to make sure

         14  that they do attend, I would also write to embarrass

         15  them publicly and do it until they decide to show up

         16  here at the City Council.

         17                 I think it is an outrage that Academy

         18  bus company is not here to testify before this City

         19  Council. They want to come here and take our

         20  children, our seniors, they want to do business in

         21  the City of New York, but they thumb their nose on

         22  the City of New York.

         23                 I know they can say we have no

         24  jurisdiction, but let me tell you, we have plenty of

         25  jurisdiction.
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          2                 If you drop off passengers, or you

          3  pick up passengers in the City of New York, we, the

          4  City of New York, have jurisdiction. And I think it

          5  is an outrage that companies, local companies, that

          6  are here basically to make money and don't care

          7  about safety, not to attend such a meeting I think

          8  is wrong, and I am going to publicly ask both

          9  Academy and the other companies that we have the

         10  list from, and I will announce that as soon as we

         11  get the list of the people we invited to this

         12  hearing, and we are going to give them another

         13  chance to attend a hearing here and to tell us what

         14  I want to hear.

         15                 I don't want to hear how we have to,

         16  I can't believe we have to implement the laws to

         17  make it safer. I am sure they want to make it safer

         18  themselves.

         19                 I want to know what they are doing,

         20  what did they learn from this last accident and from

         21  previous accidents, what are they doing to make it

         22  safer for passengers, for people going on these

         23  buses?

         24                 I think we have a right to know, and

         25  we will do everything in our power to hear that. And
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          2  I must, really I hope they will come forward to

          3  another hearing to us here.

          4                 I know we have the associations that

          5  were called up on here from the American Bus

          6  Association, as well as the United Motorcoach

          7  Association, I am glad that you are here, but I

          8  don't think you represent the particular companies

          9  in question. You are a general association and I am

         10  more than glad to have you up here to testify, but

         11  please understand that does not excuse the

         12  individual companies that actually do the business

         13  in the City of New York from not coming here, from

         14  not attending this hearing here today.

         15                 So, we will continue this hearing.

         16  So, mark my words, we will continue this hearing and

         17  we will see to it and do everything we can until

         18  these companies come forward and tell us how are

         19  they making it safer for our seniors, for our

         20  children and for the many thousands of passengers

         21  that they carry on their individual buses every day

         22  from here to all kinds of places, including out of

         23  Atlantic City as well.

         24                 We also have on our agenda some base

         25  stations. Alex, can I have the list of the people
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          2  that we invited?

          3                 Okay, let me read to you the bus

          4  companies we did invite that are not here,

          5  obviously.

          6                 Mr. Francis Cadesko, President of

          7  Academy Bus Tours of Hoboken, New Jersey. I hope

          8  that you come next time, Mr. Cadesko.

          9                 Mr. Earnest Carey, C & C Tours, of

         10  White Plains, New York.

         11                 Jay Walker, President of Gritz Bus,

         12  Queens Village, City Bus Company.

         13                 Archie Caulie, President of Caulie

         14  Coach, St. Albans, New York.

         15                 Fred Laschis, from Bay Side, E & C

         16  Transportation.

         17                 Jackie Brent, President of Brent Bus

         18  Service, right here in Far Rockaway.

         19                 Henry Pringle, President of Love Bird

         20  Van and Bus Company, Springfield Gardens.

         21                 I think that is the list that I have

         22  now. I am sure there are others as well. These are

         23  people that should be here, and I hope that the next

         24  time, and I am sure that they did reach out to

         25  Greyhound, as well, and I hope that they do come to
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          2  the next hearing that we have.

          3                 At this time I want to call upon Mr.

          4  Stuart Weisberg, and Norm Littler, to come to the

          5  witness table.

          6                 Go ahead, do you want to identify

          7  yourselves for the record, whoever wants to start?

          8                 MR. WEISBERG: My name is Stuart

          9  Weisberg, I am the President of One If By Land Tours

         10  in Flushing, New York. I am representing the

         11  American Bus Association in Washington, D.C. I was

         12  not invited to the hearing by letter, but I am here

         13  representing my company as a bus owner, as well as

         14  my Association, the American Bus Association, and we

         15  have many thousands of members throughout the United

         16  States of America.

         17                 I would like to just mention that it

         18  is the top priority of the American Bus Association

         19  to foster safety here in New York, as well as

         20  anyplace else in the United States of America. We

         21  agree with you that enforcement is necessary. We

         22  stand behind all efforts to enforce any rules and

         23  regulations to control the speeding of driving, to

         24  keep coaches safe and inspected, have drivers' hours

         25  be maintained the way they should, according to
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          2  federal regulations; however, what we are opposing

          3  is a kneejerk response to recent events and an

          4  attempt to enforce certain regulations regarding

          5  seat belts without the proper study, without the

          6  proper technology, without the proper design.

          7                 Motorcoaches providing fixed route

          8  charter and tour and other transportation services

          9  have extraordinary record of safe operation.

         10                 According to the National Safety

         11  Council during the last decade for which statistics

         12  are available, that is 1987 through 1996, interstate

         13  motorcoach travel accounted for an average of 4.3

         14  fatalities per year, compared to an average of

         15  44,080 persons per year killed in all highway

         16  fatalities during the same period.

         17                 For these ten years, the motorcoach

         18  fatality rate was .18 per 100 million passenger

         19  miles. This record has been achieved by motorcoach

         20  operators and manufacturers through their own

         21  efforts to promote the highest standards of safe

         22  design and operation, and through their compliance

         23  with stringent federal and state safety regulations.

         24                 Motorcoach operators and

         25  manufacturers actively support strong safety rules
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          2  for all classes of commercial motor vehicles,

          3  provided that there is a rational, scientific basis

          4  for them.

          5                 Federal and state motorcoach safety

          6  regulations do not mandate seat belts on

          7  motorcoaches because despite several studies no

          8  rational basis for such a mandate has been

          9  established.

         10                 University studies in Indiana and

         11  California, both recommended against installing seat

         12  belts on motorcoaches because it would not be a

         13  marked reduction in deaths or injuries, while there

         14  would be a high cost of installation.

         15                 Furthermore, other studies have shown

         16  that bus companies, bus occupants, wearing lap

         17  belts, the only kind of belt that can be properly

         18  and appropriately anchored with current bus design,

         19  may incur more severe head and neck injuries than

         20  unbelted occupants.

         21                 Similarly, the National Highway

         22  Traffic Safety Administration has recently indicated

         23  that belts have no safety benefit in buses and such

         24  belts would prevent very few, if any, fatalities and

         25  the cost would be very high.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            16

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 Motorcoaches are specifically

          3  designed to maximize the safety of its passengers.

          4  They are designed to protect passengers with

          5  compartmentalization, that is protection from the

          6  seats in front of passengers.

          7                 These seats are specifically designed

          8  to fold forward and inward on impact so that

          9  passengers are cushioned on impact, while at the

         10  same time they are protected from being ejected from

         11  their seat in a crash.

         12                 This design has contributed to the

         13  extraordinary safety record of motorcoaches.

         14                 Motorcoach operators and

         15  manufacturers are always ready to consider ways to

         16  enhance the safety of motorcoach passengers,

         17  provided those methods have been shown to make a

         18  substantial contribution to safety. In the case of

         19  seat belts, there has been no such showing.

         20                 Furthermore, there has been no

         21  standard established for a motorcoach seat belt

         22  design that will enhance safety, until such study

         23  has been done and design standards based on the

         24  study results developed, it makes no sense to

         25  require seat belts on motorcoaches.
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          2                 MR. LITTLER: Good afternoon, Chairman

          3  Dear, Honorable Council members. I wish to express

          4  my sincere appreciation for inviting us to attend

          5  and to speak at today's hearing.

          6                 I had a prepared text, which I

          7  believe you will be receiving, if you have not

          8  already received it. I am going to deviate from that

          9  since almost everything that was in my text,

         10  Chairman, you have already responded to, and I must

         11  say you are very well informed on this issue, and

         12  what wasn't covered there, I believe that my

         13  colleague has also covered.

         14                 You show you fully understand the

         15  issue of seat belts and the issue of federal

         16  responsibility here. Congress, of course, gave the

         17  USDOT the authority to establish vehicle safety

         18  performance standards. We are not pro or con seat

         19  belts per say. We don't know, we do not have safety

         20  data, empirical data.

         21                 I have been involved and worked with

         22  the National Transportation Safety Board on scene at

         23  various accidents, including the Golden Sun accident

         24  of a number of years ago, which many will probably

         25  remember, and the fact is that there are so few
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          2  serious crashes that the Safety Board started three

          3  years ago to develop a study, a bus crash worthiness

          4  study, which we expect will be out at the end of

          5  February, beginning of March sometime, which may

          6  implement or may put forward conclusions and

          7  recommendations to not only the industry but

          8  obviously to the USDOT on possible passenger

          9  enhancements.

         10                 I believe that my colleague spoke of

         11  the numbers. I think it is very important again to

         12  reinforce the fact that bus travel is safe, it is

         13  the safest form of surface passenger transportation.

         14  It is equal to school bus in safety.

         15                 The chances of being fatally injured

         16  in your car on an order of magnitude of two, is 100

         17  times, or close to 100 times more likely. It's a

         18  very safe form of transportation. Can it be made

         19  safer? There is no question. There is no question in

         20  our mind that things can always be done, but people

         21  have to work together.

         22                 When you mentioned that there were

         23  invitations to other companies to attend, then you

         24  continue to bring forward these hearings. We, as an

         25  industry, would like to work with this Council, our
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          2  members would like to work with this Council. We

          3  represent close to 800 professional companies in

          4  this country, and I will provide you with a

          5  complimentary copy of our directory with our members

          6  and all our New York members are listed. Please call

          7  on them, we will be working to get them to your next

          8  hearings.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you for your

         10  words. I appreciate your sincerity, and I think you

         11  are concerned. Because when I did my research, I did

         12  speak to bus owners who do travel the routes to

         13  Atlantic City and other places, and very clearly

         14  they said to me we have a very serious problem, and

         15  if we have drivers that are not operating the way

         16  they should be, then we want to put a stop to it.

         17                 My concern here is, and I take you up

         18  on it that the next time we will bring in these

         19  people, is it is more the way I saw it was a

         20  callousness, after the response of the two

         21  accidents, in particular when they had major

         22  fatalities, is the bus companies not coming forward

         23  the way they should.

         24                 One, I remember seeing in particular

         25  again Academy making, well we have the best record.
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          2  It is not what the family of the dead wants to hear,

          3  that they had the best record. It was not a best

          4  record. And to go out there and defend yourself at

          5  that time, I think it is hard to defend and

          6  shouldn't have been defended.

          7                 MR. LITTLER: I agree. And I can't

          8  speak for why the members of the industry have not

          9  attended today, and as an industry, our condolences

         10  go out to the families of the victims of this tragic

         11  crash.

         12                 You did mention one thing that I

         13  think is very important, and to take it away from

         14  the seat belts, since the request will go to the

         15  federal government to investigate and to conduct

         16  tests or to speed up the process, as I say the NTSB

         17  may very well be keeping pace or maybe pacing that.

         18                 You mention the retraining, or where

         19  you are going with the driver training within the

         20  state. What was interesting is very shortly after

         21  this tragic crash occurred, the Transportation

         22  Committee down in Atlantic City called a meeting of

         23  drivers, 400 drivers attended that meeting and it

         24  was called in a matter of a few days.

         25                 There has been a new organization
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          2  started in and around the Washington area called the

          3  Bus and Motorcoach Research and Education Institute.

          4  It is a private not-for-profit organization that is

          5  going to be working on issues of coach safety,

          6  driver training, a range of issues.

          7                 There has been a partnership formed

          8  with the Atlantic City folks now, we will be

          9  conducting driver training or retraining in that

         10  region. We would like to see that program expanded.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And also, you know,

         12  it is interesting to see, one of the companies, the

         13  first company -- what was the name of that company

         14  again? Not the Academy, it was the first tragedy --

         15  the driver had a suspended license, was reinstated,

         16  was obviously driving with a legal license, but what

         17  is interesting is here is a company who knows that

         18  they have a suspended license, knows the driver has

         19  a suspended license, and takes the chance and allows

         20  him to go back on the roadway.

         21                 The law that we would like to pass

         22  would deal with how many points you can accumulate

         23  before you get terminated or your license gets

         24  suspended.

         25                 I can't understand that companies,
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          2  motorcoach companies would want drivers that have

          3  accumulated so many points or has had their license

          4  suspended. I mean, don't they know the liability to

          5  that?

          6                 MR. LITTLER: The vast majority of

          7  companies don't want that to occur. There are,

          8  however, bad companies in any industry, and there

          9  are those who ignore them. They are taking a great

         10  risk, there is no question. They are taking a risk

         11  with their liability, they are taking a risk with

         12  their insurance. If they cannot find somebody to

         13  underwrite them, they don't have a company.

         14                 What we have stated many, many times

         15  in the past is, in the industry of carrying

         16  passengers. If the public loses its confidence in

         17  our ability to carry them safely, we do not have an

         18  industry. It is in our interest to operate as

         19  safely, with great, great care.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: You wanted to

         21  respond, go ahead.

         22                 MR. WEISBERG: Yes, I think we are

         23  focusing on the exception rather than the rule.

         24                 I know my colleagues are far more

         25  professional on the large picture than what you have
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          2  mentioned.

          3                 I can't answer for why Brewins

          4  (phonetic) and Academy are not here, but I can tell

          5  you that most of us, and I carry more than 60,000

          6  students a year on trips, I am probably the largest

          7  student tour operator in the United States of

          8  America, we adhere to Article 19A in New York State.

          9  Our drivers are fingerprinted, our drivers are

         10  alcohol tested, they are drug tested. They don't get

         11  through the door in my company with points, period.

         12  Not eight points, not 16 points - zero points. We

         13  tell them to come back in 39 months when their

         14  record is clear.

         15                 They have to go through a safety test

         16  by two safety directors in my company. I think many

         17  of the companies out here -- and I have the same

         18  concern you do because I don't have enough coaches

         19  in my own fleet to fulfill the needs of my own tour

         20  company and I need to do what is called farming out,

         21  I farm out to these companies too. I am very

         22  concerned who is driving those children, and I am

         23  very concerned who is driving those senior citizens.

         24  And I have been on the Garden State Parkway in the

         25  right lane with a coach going 60 miles an hour and
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          2  they fly by me too. This is not something that is

          3  new. I think the industry and the American Bus

          4  Association and the Motorcoach has to do some

          5  cleaning up, cleaning house in terms of trying to

          6  work with people to enforce this. Most of us, by the

          7  way, do carry our phone numbers on the back of our

          8  coaches, just for business reasons alone. We want

          9  people to see our beautiful coaches and call us. So

         10  I think that is there, I think a lot of the

         11  recommendations is pretty much intact. We just don't

         12  want people to get the impression that we are

         13  callous or that we are not interested in safety

         14  because the day that safety has to be compromised is

         15  the day I close my door.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Let me just tell

         17  you, and I notice that not only you are representing

         18  the Association, you are a tour operator in the City

         19  of New York, right here in Queens.

         20                 MR. WEISBERG: And a bus operator.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And a bus operator.

         22                 How many buses do you operate?

         23                 MR. WEISBERG: I own nine coaches.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Nine coaches.

         25                 And you deal you said mostly with
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          2  students?

          3                 MR. WEISBERG: I think 60 percent of

          4  my business is students and the other 40 is senior

          5  citizens that basically cover the two markets you

          6  mentioned.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: What I notice is

          8  that there are a lot of companies, because you have

          9  limited buses, each company, like you said you farm

         10  out that business; who do you control that business

         11  when you farm it out to make sure you are safe?

         12                 MR. WEISBERG: We require the coach

         13  company we employ to send us an abstract of the

         14  driver who is driving to make sure his record is

         15  clean, or her record is clean.

         16                 We don't go to companies that have

         17  bad records. We don't go to companies that we --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Let's talk about

         19  the bad companies. You know, you came here and you

         20  said we have to clean up our own act. Obviously

         21  there is a problem internally and obviously members

         22  of the American Bus Association are part of it.

         23                 What are you doing? What is the

         24  American Bus Association doing about those companies

         25  that you know that have to clean up their act? What
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          2  is being done now as we speak to make sure that we

          3  don't have another tragedy like the one that we had

          4  a few weeks ago?

          5                 MR. WEISBERG: Well I am here

          6  representing them, so that is the first step.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay.

          8                 MR. WEISBERG: We showed up.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And I appreciate

         10  that.

         11                 What are you doing specifically on

         12  the recommendations that we made?

         13                 For example, you do drug testing,

         14  alcohol testing, as well as --

         15                 MR. WEISBERG: Fingerprinting.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Fingerprinting.

         17  Which by the way is not required. You are not

         18  required to do fingerprinting for your bus drivers,

         19  are you now?

         20                 MR. WEISBERG: If you carry students.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Only if you carry

         22  students.

         23                 MR. WEISBERG: Students, right. So

         24  what we have done is we have fingerprinted our

         25  entire driver --

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            27

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: It is only for

          3  students. I understand, for students.

          4                 Otherwise you are not required, I

          5  mean if you are carrying adult passengers?

          6                 MR. WEISBERG: To be fingerprinted,

          7  no, but alcohol and drug testing, that is mandatory.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I understand that.

          9                 Now, who does the enforcement to make

         10  sure that the alcohol and drug testing is taking

         11  place?

         12                 MR. WEISBERG: Well, most of us belong

         13  to either consortiums, drug testing consortiums, or

         14  we have an affiliation with a health center and they

         15  not only administer the testing, but they handle the

         16  random selection of drivers. So, every couple of

         17  weeks or months we get a notice saying this driver

         18  must be drug tested.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And who enforces to

         20  make sure that you are doing it properly? Who

         21  oversees it to make sure? Does anyone come and check

         22  your records if you are doing it?

         23                 MR. WEISBERG: Well, yes you can be --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: You can be.

         25                 MR. WEISBERG: Yes, the Federal

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            28

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  Highway Administration does audit you and does

          3  administer that.

          4                 I think for the most part I would say

          5  well over 95 percent of people comply to the letter

          6  of the law with that.

          7                 There are some degree of

          8  self-regulation here and I think that the

          9  professionalism of the people involved, I think most

         10  bus companies do, and I would bet that the companies

         11  in question, the ones that you targeted as some of

         12  the bad boys, I would think that they probably also

         13  have administered their drug and alcohol testing.

         14                 I don't think drugs and alcohol are

         15  necessarily the issue in these particular

         16  fatalities. Speeding may very well be the issue, but

         17  I don't think drugs and alcohol is.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: You know what

         19  concerns me, you keep on saying the bad boys and you

         20  say those who are not here, and what I shudder and I

         21  get nervous when I see Academy all over the place,

         22  and I am sure that Academy is one of those type of

         23  companies, not only do they do their own charter,

         24  but they also supply other companies with buses.

         25  Because I have seen that when my kids go up to camp,
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          2  I say which company did you hire, and they say we

          3  hired XYZ, and Academy is one of them I have no

          4  problem. But if you are telling me that there are

          5  companies like that available with buses, and my

          6  kids are not safe and our seniors are not safe, what

          7  are we doing right now to make sure it is safe?

          8  Maybe you could answer.

          9                 MR. LITTLER: First of all, you can

         10  access either of the Association's web sites, and

         11  there are consumer tips in there that will lead you

         12  through what to ask when you are chartering or

         13  hiring a bus company.

         14                 On the United Motorcoach Association

         15  web site, we have a portion where you can check the

         16  Department of Transportation safety ratings of those

         17  companies. You simply type in the name of the

         18  company or the motor carrier identification number

         19  or the Department of Transportation number, you will

         20  get a photograph, a snapshot of the record of that

         21  company, including accidents, including its safety

         22  rating --

         23                 MR. WEISBERG: And inspection records.

         24                 MR. LITTLER: And its inspection

         25  records. The public can check those things, and you
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          2  can call the Department of Transportation, or as I

          3  say, you can simply check our web site or call our

          4  offices. We will provide that information.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Let me go back to

          6  you, because you are New York based.

          7                 How many buses would you say, I heard

          8  different numbers, how many buses would you say

          9  travel down to Atlantic City a day from here?

         10                 MR. WEISBERG: It depends on the

         11  season. It could be as much as 2,000 a day in a peak

         12  season. Right now it is kind of light.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: When it is light,

         14  how many buses?

         15                 MR. WEISBERG: You might have a few

         16  hundred in a given day. They are pretty light. And

         17  during the time of those accidents it was a very

         18  light period of time.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: So, you could have

         20  close to 2,000 buses traveling from here?

         21                 MR. WEISBERG: Well, traveling from

         22  Baltimore and traveling from Philadelphia, traveling

         23  from here and it used to be New England, although

         24  they have their own casinos now, so they sort of

         25  petered out.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: How many from New

          3  York?

          4                 MR. WEISBERG: From New York itself?

          5  You could have 1,000.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Buses, wow.

          7                 Okay, I would also, I understand the

          8  issue of the seat belts, and this is something that

          9  is a very controversial issue, and I am sure the

         10  first time to put seat belts in cars was mandated, I

         11  am sure these associations were out there before

         12  congress testifying why they shouldn't do it. And I

         13  remember the same bus companies when we wanted the

         14  mandate on school buses seat belts which we have

         15  now, there was a compromise worked out, and

         16  everybody came up with every excuse why it shouldn't

         17  happen. And I am going to allow it -- you know what?

         18  As a professional, so I understand, I would hope in

         19  the next few weeks they will come out with some

         20  answers, and I understand inside they may require

         21  some sort of seat belt. I know there is another

         22  problem with the seat belts because it depends on

         23  how the chair is and everything else, granted that.

         24                 But what I am concerned about, and

         25  you keep on alluding to that, is the concern about
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          2  the bad boys, the bad boys and the bad guys that are

          3  out there, and I am afraid they are still operating

          4  whereby we should be slowing them down. We shouldn't

          5  be using people who have suspended licenses or have

          6  ten points on their licenses, and I would like to

          7  see a way -- I don't know if I will ever be able to

          8  implement it the way you want it, no points at all,

          9  but some system where you are having safe and

         10  courteous and professional drivers.

         11                 MR. WEISBERG: I want to just mention

         12  that the New York Department of Transportation

         13  inspects other coaches at my garage, and we see what

         14  comes in and what goes out, and the first step might

         15  be somebody to contact them. Because I would suggest

         16  that people who have bad inspection records probably

         17  have bad driving records as well as a correlation

         18  there.

         19                 Again, just a guess, I can't

         20  empirically support that, but I can tell you a

         21  little work with the Department of Transportation

         22  might tell you, they will tell you who to look for.

         23                 The inspection stations, it is an

         24  interesting phenomenon, the inspection stations on

         25  the Garden State Parkway, they pull coaches over
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          2  every day and they go through an inspection. You can

          3  talk to those people, they will tell you who they

          4  put out of service regularly, and I suspect again

          5  that those people are put out of service regularly,

          6  they probably -- if they have low standards on

          7  maintenance, they probably have low standards on

          8  drivers as well.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: But how are they

         10  also -- you saw, I am sure, the report right

         11  afterwards when the newspapers came out there,

         12  particularly the New York Post, they had a radar gun

         13  there, and they were clocking buses going by 80

         14  miles an hour; is anyone doing anything to slow them

         15  down?

         16                 MR. WEISBERG: I think they are

         17  enforcing now.

         18                 In any kind of enforcement, I am sure

         19  motor vehicle enforcement and on the New York State

         20  Thruway with automobiles there are periods of time

         21  where they enforce more stringently holiday periods,

         22  periods where they think people drink more. I mean,

         23  there has got to be some system for what they do,

         24  but they are out there.

         25                 The second seminar by the way is
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          2  tomorrow, the 20th, yes. They have another seminar

          3  for drivers there, they are taking that seriously as

          4  well.

          5                 I am not thrilled to see people

          6  flying by. I want you to know also that buses are

          7  supposed to be, at least my coaches are, they are

          8  supposed to be governed that they cannot go above 72

          9  miles an hour, which means that some mechanic is

         10  opening the governor up on those coaches to allow

         11  that.

         12                 If my drivers try to go 80 miles an

         13  hour, the bus will not do it. It just won't. And we

         14  have computers and the computers, if I read the

         15  computer and I see that it exceeded the speed limit,

         16  and I read it out, he is not driving any longer.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And I can say also,

         18  you can have self-control that in a sense of

         19  self-policing, if all your buses are not required

         20  obviously, because of other reasons, because you

         21  don't want them taking some side trips with your

         22  buses, or whatever it may be, it is safety issues

         23  also.

         24                 MR. WEISBERG: Safety is the only

         25  issue.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay. So, safety

          3  is. Do all of the buses have that type of computer?

          4                 MR. WEISBERG: All of the newer

          5  coaches do.

          6                 Again, you know, again you will see

          7  some of these companies are not operating the newer

          8  model coaches. The newer ones are, all the newer

          9  engines are computerized and they --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: They say exactly

         11  how fast they are going?

         12                 MR. WEISBERG: Oh, yes. They will tell

         13  you how long they have been idling, you know, engine

         14  speed, how often they stop and you hit the brake,

         15  that is readily available. In some of my coaches it

         16  is right on the dashboard.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And how many of the

         18  American Bus Association members comply to the same

         19  sets of standards that you have?

         20                 MR. WEISBERG: I would say

         21  overwhelming proportion.

         22                 The same thing with United

         23  Motorcoach, and we have similar -- we are

         24  overlapping organizations. Some of us belong to

         25  both. So we are all dedicated to that. We are all
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          2  dedicated to the professionalism in the industry.

          3                 MR. LITTLER: And I think that you

          4  will find that both of the associations, the members

          5  that belong to the associations are professional

          6  coach operators, but we don't have every company.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I understand that.

          8  I understand.

          9                 MR. WEISBERG: I think of the list you

         10  read of the invitations, the only one who belonged

         11  to our association was -- well, only two, were

         12  Academy and Greyhound. The other ones were not

         13  members.

         14                 A lot of the problems I find lie with

         15  the independent small operators who don't belong to

         16  the associations for whatever their reason.

         17                 The associations do maintenance

         18  workshops, they do safety workshops, they have

         19  annual meetings, annual shows to try to enhance all

         20  of this, and they take it very seriously. We spend a

         21  lot of time working on that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I have other

         23  Council Members who want to ask questions.

         24                 Council Member Lasher, although he is

         25  not a member of this Committee, was very much
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          2  concerned with this issue and joined me at a press

          3  conference earlier on this, earlier in the year, on

          4  this issue.

          5                 Go ahead, Council Member Lasher.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER:  I represent

          7  the Brighton Beach, Coney Island, Bensonhurst area.

          8  To me eight deaths in one week that occurred from

          9  buses that had gone to Atlantic City is just an

         10  unconscionable number.

         11                 I believe, and I think that we

         12  mandate on personal vehicles that they wear seat

         13  belts. I don't see any reason why the buses should

         14  not have seat belts for every person, and especially

         15  because you are dealing with a size, a population

         16  that is senior citizens, and a senior citizen who is

         17  belted in is more likely to survive any type of

         18  major accident or fault.

         19                 Your problem is that I think the

         20  statistics that are looked at, that have been looked

         21  at with seat belts, don't deal with senior citizens

         22  per say.

         23                 A senior citizen is a fragile person.

         24  If he is not belted in, and he flies at an accident,

         25  he is going to break bones, he is going to have all
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          2  sorts of different complications than an average

          3  person who was seated in a seat belt and is taking a

          4  trip and something happens and he goes forward, or

          5  is pushed forward or is out of his seat, it is not

          6  going to have the same type of damage that a senior

          7  citizen is going to incur. And I think that it is

          8  the mandatory seat belt, especially on those

          9  vehicles that are going at such a speed, going to,

         10  getting to Atlantic City, which is important to get

         11  there so they can put their money in the slot

         12  machines as fast as they can, which is the whole

         13  intent, is just somebody that has to be protected,

         14  even to a greater degree than just a regular bus run

         15  that is going up from New York to New Jersey or back

         16  and forth.

         17                 So, from what I have seen and from

         18  some of the reports of the people who I have met

         19  whose families have been affected because they died

         20  on those buses, that they have to have some type of

         21  restraint, otherwise you are going to have more than

         22  the number of accidents that you should have because

         23  they are just not stable within that seat alone if

         24  there is any type of a quick stop or even an

         25  accident.
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          2                 MR. WEISBERG: I don't think anybody

          3  is opposed to the concept of putting seat belts on

          4  coaches.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: So then let's

          6  do it.

          7                 MR. WEISBERG: I think what we are

          8  concerned about is the design of that seat belt. The

          9  only kind of seat belt you can put on a motorcoach

         10  currently is a lapbelt, because of the construction

         11  of the coach. Now, if you put lap belts on it has

         12  shown that it increases the risk of head and neck

         13  injury, that is concern.

         14                 We want to see something, a design

         15  study. We want to see something that shows

         16  empirically that this would be the right solution.

         17  We have evolved with automobiles from lap belts to

         18  inertia belts which we have now, and the inertia

         19  belts are a lot safer. We have had air bags that

         20  have injured people, they had to revise those. So,

         21  my concern is just jumping in there and just

         22  mandating something without knowing what the

         23  ramifications will be.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: You have a

         25  major industry, and a major industry with major
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          2  money. I don't understand why the industry itself

          3  wouldn't look to protect itself from these types --

          4  I am sure at every accident there are multiple

          5  suits.

          6                 MR. LITTLER: Council member, I have

          7  been very involved in this issue for many years. I

          8  used to work for the largest manufacturer of

          9  motorcoaches, North America Motorcoach Industries, I

         10  was 17 years with them working in the engineering

         11  department and also in their risk management and in

         12  their claims area.

         13                 The question of seat belts in

         14  motorcoaches is much more complex than it is in

         15  cars. A light vehicle, such as a passenger car,

         16  belts have been determined to be very, very

         17  effective in keeping the person one with the

         18  vehicle.

         19                 Whereas, the motorcoach where you see

         20  50 people, some who may use belts, some who may not

         21  use belts, historically it has shown that probably

         22  no more than 18 to 20 percent of the people on board

         23  may use the belts.

         24                 If you get into a frontal collision,

         25  in a situation like that where people who are
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          2  unbelted are hitting people who are belted, you have

          3  a completely different crash dynamics here.

          4                 The problem is that it has not been

          5  tested. Nobody has established a standard. So, if

          6  you have one bus company that puts belts in

          7  voluntarily, what standard did they put them into?

          8                 Another company puts them in and

          9  develops a different standard, then who is right?

         10                 The NTSB's current study. And I was

         11  out in Las Vegas at the hearing, I testified there

         12  and I have worked with them many years on the issue

         13  of seat belts, it is a very complex one and the only

         14  way it will be solved is when the federal government

         15  determines that they will get serious about doing

         16  dynamic crash testing, rollover tests, barrier

         17  collision tests.

         18                 The Society of Automotive Engineers

         19  is the group of automotive experts who established

         20  the scientific testing protocol for these things.

         21  They haven't developed the instrumentation to test

         22  belts in buses at this point.

         23                 The industry can't simply put belts

         24  in, and we have called on the federal government to

         25  look at this before. The National Highway Traffic
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          2  Safety Administration has the congressional mandate

          3  to establish safety performance standards for motor

          4  vehicles. I have a letter here that is attached to

          5  your testimony that they sent to me in 1992 when New

          6  York State legislature was looking at this issue.

          7                 Page two of this letter, the second

          8  paragraph, admits it is expressly determined that

          9  there is not a safety need for safety belts or

         10  another type of occupant crash protection at these

         11  seating positions.

         12                 Now, when the federal agency that

         13  establishes safety performance standards for motor

         14  vehicles and certifies motor vehicles in the country

         15  states this, a manufacturer that would go against

         16  the standards that they have established may lay

         17  themselves open to an even greater liability. The

         18  manufacturers are not the ones, the industry are not

         19  the ones that can put the belts in, the National

         20  Highway Traffic Safety Administration is the agency

         21  that must determine what standards -- first of all

         22  that there is a need, and then secondly, what

         23  standards they put them into.

         24                 Do they put lap belts in or do they

         25  put lap shoulder belts in?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: Do you want my

          3  opinion? If you want to pay me for it, I will be

          4  happy to give it to you.

          5                 I am just saying --

          6                 MR. LITTLER: It is a very complicated

          7  issue, that is all I am saying. It is not the

          8  manufacturers or the operators of the motorcoaches.

          9  We don't know enough about seat belts, whether they

         10  would be beneficial or detrimental in certain

         11  circumstances. In a rollover they may be beneficial.

         12  In a frontal collision or a frontal collision which

         13  is the majority of the crashes that occur, they may

         14  be detrimental. We don't have the testing.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: I think you

         16  have to listen to statistics that have occurred.

         17                 MR. LITTLER: Well, exactly what the

         18  NTSB has done is they have gone back 30 years and

         19  examined 50 bus crashes. Those are the ones that

         20  they are trying to examine to determine whether

         21  belts -- fifty in 30 years, they just haven't had

         22  the historical numbers, they actually have to go out

         23  to a test track, develop a testing protocol, create

         24  the crash test dummies and the instrumentation to

         25  actually determine whether belts are going to work,
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          2  and particularly when you are dealing with a range

          3  of people in statures, and in age.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: The point that

          5  I am trying to make is that you know, obviously,

          6  because it has happened, that people who have

          7  accessed these buses going to Atlantic City, there

          8  have been many fatalities. Don't you think that it

          9  is incumbent upon you to get on the back of the

         10  federal government to go ahead and say to us that

         11  they have developed a safety device that will be a

         12  restraint, that will save these people's lives?

         13  Especially the senior citizens.

         14                 MR. LITTLER: We testified, the United

         15  Motorcoach Association and myself, I was called as a

         16  witness, this was last summer of 1998, before the

         17  NTSB hearing on this issue. We spoke at great length

         18  on the possibilities of safety belts or other means

         19  of keeping people in the bus. There is the bottom

         20  line, how do you keep the people in the bus? It

         21  might not be safety belts, it might be some other

         22  device.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: What I am

         24  saying is that you had better move on it. Because I

         25  have to believe that with what has been going on and
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          2  the number of accidents and the number of people who

          3  have been maimed and the number of people who have

          4  died, your liability has got to be going through the

          5  roof. And I would think that it is incumbent upon

          6  you to get this act together and push the federal

          7  government to do whatever tests are necessary to

          8  save people's lives.

          9                 I mean, it is just incredible that

         10  you are putting it off on another agency to go ahead

         11  and do it and the federal government who is as slow

         12  as can be in getting these tests done, doing other

         13  tests, they have a backlog of things that people

         14  want them to do. You have to go ahead and you have

         15  to push.

         16                 MR. LITTLER: We have letters going

         17  back into the early eighties petitioning the

         18  National Highway Traffic Safety Administration

         19  regarding the installation of seat belts. They would

         20  not even give guidelines to the industry. Voluntary

         21  guidelines. They said they may be misinterpreted as

         22  being agency policy.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: I can't

         24  believe that. I can't believe it. I would love to

         25  see --
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          2                 MR. LITTLER: I will send the letter

          3  to you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: Please do.

          5                 MR. LITTLER: I will do that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: It is

          7  absolutely incredible that the federal government is

          8  saying we will have nothing to do with trying to

          9  keep the safety of the people of the United States.

         10                 MR. LITTLER: As I say, I have a

         11  letter attached to your testimony.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: Thank you.

         13                 MR. LITTLER: And I have the original

         14  copy here. A I had mentioned before, the National

         15  Highway Traffic Safety Administration expressly

         16  determined that there is not a safety need for

         17  safety belts or another type of occupant crash

         18  protection at these seating positions. This is

         19  signed by the Chief Counsel of National Highway

         20  Traffic Safety Administration.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: I would like

         22  copies of that.

         23                 MR. LITTLER: It is attached to your

         24  testimony.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: Yes. I just
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          2  have a comment that something has to be done,

          3  because you are going to lose an industry, and I

          4  just see that eventually --

          5                 MR. LITTLER: We are the ones that are

          6  in the middle of this unfortunately, and we are

          7  hopeful that meaningful recommendations come out of

          8  the NTSB study that will give us direction, and will

          9  direct the NHTSA to at least study or recommend

         10  testing or at least review its current policy.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: It has to be

         12  able to come up with something. To me it is just

         13  incredible.

         14                 MR. LITTLER: I believe the

         15  recommendations will be coming out in the end of

         16  February or the beginning of March.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I understand that

         18  our information is that they are going to come out

         19  with some recommendations.

         20                 MR. LITTLER: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Council Member

         22  Stabile.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Thank you,

         24  Mr. Chairman.

         25                 I am a little confused. I really am.
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          2  I am looking at two gentlemen who I think are very

          3  well meaning and very sincere about what they are

          4  saying. In your testimony, the cost factor, I think

          5  it was four, five times mentioned in your testimony,

          6  cost factor.

          7                 The other thing you mentioned about

          8  the way the buses are constructed, how well they are

          9  constructed, the folding seats and everything else.

         10  Now I start having a problem with this all because

         11  you are saying to me that the federal government,

         12  who is lobbied by different industries and different

         13  associations on a yearly basis, lobby to improve or

         14  to add something or to take away something; have

         15  your organizations done any lobbying in the last

         16  several years, to lobby with the National Safety

         17  Council with the federal government to try to find

         18  out what -- have you actively been involved in any

         19  of this lobbying to improve safety, number one?

         20                 Have you been involved with the

         21  factor of seat belts being an issue, not just

         22  talking at one moment and just leaving and that is

         23  it?

         24                 The other thing which kind of

         25  confuses me is we are talking about school buses
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          2  too, school buses was mentioned on both the

          3  Chairman's statement and I believe your statement,

          4  yet we do mandate school buses after 1987, Mr.

          5  Chairman? Who have made after 1997, who have been

          6  produced, to have seat belts. School buses go less

          7  of a distance on an average than a charter bus. So,

          8  why would the federal government mandate having

          9  school buses or the state having seat belts on them,

         10  but not charter buses, which are going, traveling on

         11  an interstate at a higher speed and obviously very

         12  unsafe conditions because of the speed and the

         13  weather conditions and everything else play a part

         14  in it? The other thing I want to ask you about which

         15  is safety -- which you kept saying about the

         16  mandated alcohol testing and everything else, that

         17  is done on a random basis with these drivers, of

         18  course, and everything else.

         19                 On your safety factor, when a bus is

         20  taken out of commission on the thruway, what happens

         21  to that bus? What happens to that driver if he is

         22  found intoxicated? Is he arrested at the scene? Is

         23  the bus company then investigated why, safety as far

         24  as tires and everything else to go along with it?

         25  The type of glass that is used.
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          2                 I see some of the charter buses, and

          3  I mean I don't care to mention any names, but they

          4  look so old they shouldn't even be out there anymore

          5  on some of the smaller companies, and I can name two

          6  or three that are in Southeast Queens. I look at

          7  their buses, they look like they are ready to fall

          8  apart.

          9                 But I am basically concerned with

         10  what you said --

         11                 MR. LITTLER: Councilman, I would like

         12  to answer part of your questions. You asked a number

         13  of questions.  And, yes, we do lobby. And last year

         14  when the congress passed the Transportation Equity

         15  Act for the 21st century, there were a number of

         16  safety issues, bus specific safety issues in there

         17  that we worked very, very hard to bring in place.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Were seat

         19  belts ever --

         20                 MR. LITTLER: Seat belts were not part

         21  of that. We have sent numerous letters to various

         22  agencies, we do not lobby, we do not lobby the USDOT

         23  per say. They tend to stand above that.

         24                 They have a rule-making process where

         25  they ask for comments. We comment where there is an
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          2  opening to that.

          3                 You commented about the seat belts in

          4  school buses, as opposed to not being in charter

          5  buses. There are two states in the country that

          6  require lap-type belts in school buses, and they are

          7  the only seat belts required in school buses. That

          8  is New York and New Jersey.

          9                 The reason that New York and New

         10  Jersey were allowed by the National Highway Traffic

         11  Safety Administration to install seat belts is

         12  because the state owns the vehicle.

         13                 That is where the supremacy clause of

         14  the constitution comes in and where NHTSA's

         15  preemptive authority comes in. If it is a private

         16  vehicle, then they maintain the right to establish

         17  the safety standards.

         18                 If the State owns the vehicle, you

         19  have the right to go above the established

         20  standards.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Excuse me.

         22  Point of interest: You are telling me that our

         23  school buses that are owned by Amboy, Varsity --

         24                 MR. LITTLER: Funded by the State.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: -- Are owned
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          2  by the state. Their DOT, in other words, their card,

          3  their registration says State of New York, owned by

          4  the State of New York?

          5                 MR. LITTLER: Any vehicle that is

          6  funded or owned directly by the State, you have the

          7  right --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: But I am

          9  talking about these companies, you are telling me --

         10  I am very interested in this now, you are telling me

         11  these school buses, or if it was charter, are owned

         12  by the State of New York, the State of New York

         13  holds their registration?

         14                 MR. LITTLER: No. If you own the

         15  vehicle or you fund the cost of operation of the

         16  vehicle -- in the case of a school bus where the

         17  school district may own the bus, you have the right

         18  to require whatever you want in that coach for

         19  safety equipment.

         20                 Now, if a person wants to charter,

         21  who owns school buses and wants to contract with the

         22  district, obviously they need to come up with what

         23  the district requires them or what the state has

         24  required --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: It is a
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          2  bidding process.

          3                 MR. LITTLER: Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay. But I

          5  am just a little confused here. You are telling me

          6  our school buses in the City of New York are owned

          7  by the State of New York.

          8                 MR. LITTLER: They are owned or

          9  funded.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: He says either

         11  owned or funded. So, that is where we are going to

         12  disagree with you in a sense that I could tell you

         13  that where the companies do business within the City

         14  of New York -- you know that that is the line that

         15  you use to get --

         16                 MR. LITTLER: That is not the line I

         17  use. That is the line the federal government uses.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: No, no, you guys

         19  use. And what happened with the buses as well, first

         20  they say interstate commerce, you can't, supremacy

         21  clause, all the issues that you can't, and you have

         22  no right and everything else, and it was done.

         23                 Let me assure you this much, that we

         24  have public safety in mind here in the City of New

         25  York, and we have jurisdiction over public safety,
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          2  and I can assure you if the report that comes out,

          3  and we are going to wait until that report comes out

          4  because we know it is coming out shortly, if it

          5  comes out that they require seat belts, so we don't

          6  have to do anything, because you will have it done.

          7  But we will look at the report, if it says no or

          8  suggested or recommendation or whatever it may be,

          9  we will look at that issue, because that is very,

         10  very important to us --

         11                 MR. LITTLER: I understand.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Safety is utmost

         13  important to us. And in addition to that, any

         14  regulation dealing with passenger safety, including

         15  the point system and including testing of drugs

         16  which are only required on school -- I am sorry, of

         17  fingerprinting, which are only required on carrying

         18  school children, and other things that make it safer

         19  for passengers, any way we can, we will invoke our

         20  jurisdiction and then I will tell you, take us to

         21  court and we will win. Because no one will challenge

         22  us when it comes to picking up passengers and

         23  discharging in the City of New York.

         24                 Because what we can do if you play

         25  that game is simple, we can forbid you from doing
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          2  that. And we could summons you each time you do it,

          3  because you have no right to do it, because if you

          4  do it in a public bus stop, you are not authorized

          5  to do that so we will stop you there.

          6                 If you do it on a street corner, that

          7  is unsafe to just do it on a street corner. So there

          8  are ways --

          9                 MR. LITTLER: No question. Don't get

         10  me wrong, you have the absolute right to challenge

         11  whatever their position is.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Mr. Chairman,

         13  can I finish my questions?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Yes, go ahead.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: What I am a

         16  little concerned about, I would honestly believe

         17  that the coach industry, in all honesty, would want

         18  to do anything to protect the safety of the

         19  passengers.

         20                 MR. LITTLER: Absolutely.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: And if seat

         22  belts was an issue, strapping in the rider, or

         23  whatever. But what confuses me so much, in today's

         24  technology, the designs that we have today, I mean

         25  we have computers that practically do everything but
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          2  reproduce babies today, you are telling me, with all

          3  of the technology that is out there, a coach

          4  manufacturer can't design a seat belt that can be

          5  designed to fit any type of coach bus or an existing

          6  coach bus? That is my first thing that I don't

          7  believe. Okay, I don't believe that.

          8                 MR. LITTLER: It can.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Now it can?

         10  Oh, let me go back. Let me go back.

         11                 First you said it couldn't. It can't.

         12  Let's go back now, let's go back another step, okay?

         13                 We talk and we talk and we talk-- and

         14  sometimes me and Mr. Chairman, me and Councilman

         15  Dear disagree, sometimes we don't, this is one issue

         16  where we are agreeing 100 percent on.

         17                 My concern is that as an industry, as

         18  an association, and you mentioned that maybe one or

         19  two of them don't belong or do belong to your

         20  association, what really bewilders me is why not the

         21  association actively, actively want to protect the

         22  safety by putting some sort of safety valve. Not

         23  waiting 30 years. Let's not compare statistics from

         24  30 years to 1999, that would be a little ridiculous.

         25  Atlantic City was nowhere near the traffic we have
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          2  now, the amount of cars on the road, the amount of

          3  buses that are being used and the amount of seniors

          4  using these buses, and the amount of children in our

          5  school system.

          6                 So, we can't compare 30 years ago

          7  into 1999. So to me that is all a lot of baloney.

          8                 The second thing I cannot understand,

          9  when you said we make the -- have either one of you

         10  driven in a school bus lately?

         11                 MR. WEISBERG: Oh yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: When a school

         13  bus drives, and I have been privy to some tapes that

         14  I have seen, that they have cameras which we allow,

         15  put them in school buses and see how the children

         16  react, when the adults ride these buses they are

         17  hitting their heads constantly, okay?

         18                 You cannot tell me the way the

         19  coaches are designed and constructed are anywhere

         20  near the way school buses are designed and

         21  constructed. Yet, we want seat belts in the school

         22  buses but not on coach buses.

         23                 MR. WEISBERG: I think there have been

         24  numerous studies with school buses and there haven't

         25  been studies which coach buses, and that is
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          2  precisely what we are saying.

          3                 MR. LITTLER: Exactly.

          4                 MR. WEISBERG: We are not adversaries,

          5  we are not opposed to any method of making things

          6  more safe, the problem I would have is if you

          7  mandated me to put a lap belt in there and then all

          8  of a sudden somebody had a head or a neck injury

          9  because it was the wrong kind of a belt to put in

         10  there, based on the construction of that coach.

         11                 That is my fear. That is my fear as a

         12  parent, that is my fear as an owner.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: If you are

         14  mandated by the State of New York or by the federal

         15  government or by whatever form of government, and

         16  mandated may also include a cost factor, that the

         17  state may pick up a certain tab on or whatever, if

         18  mandating, at that point why would there be a

         19  problem with an insurance issue? Because if you are

         20  being mandated by a government to do something,

         21  isn't that where you can fall back on in the court

         22  of law, saying I was mandated by the United States

         23  government or the state of New York to put a seat

         24  belt in. So, why would the company be afraid of a

         25  mandate that would enforce seat belts in charter
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          2  buses to protect the seniors.

          3                 MR. WEISBERG: I am not concerned

          4  about a cost factor and I am not concerned about a

          5  lawsuit, I am concerned about hurting people --

          6                 MR. LITTLER: And doing it right.

          7                 MR. WEISBERG: And doing the right

          8  thing and not hurting people.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: So, we are

         10  going to wait 30 more years to find out --

         11                 MR. WEISBERG: We didn't say that, we

         12  have made every attempt, and the government is

         13  addressing that issue. We are making the attempt to

         14  try to get it done and get it done correctly.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: If you are mandated

         16  you will have no choice but to do it.

         17                 MR. WEISBERG: Of course. And let me

         18  --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I just want to ask

         20  you on this seat belt thing, because firstly, from

         21  your personal perspective, you are obviously

         22  professionals, are seat belts the way to go?

         23                 MR. WEISBERG: I honestly don't know

         24  the answer. I want to hear the study. It should be

         25  done, and it should be expedited, but until I hear
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          2  the study I wouldn't commit myself.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Let me move on, we

          4  have some other members.

          5                 Council Member Eisland.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Thank you

          7  very much, Chairman Dear.

          8                 First let me commend you on your

          9  opening statement. Quite frankly, we have several

         10  different industries that we are considering seat

         11  belts for. And as you delineated we have the long

         12  distance interstate, you have intra-city, there are

         13  a variety of industry areas that we are considering

         14  seat belts for and other safety measures. Having had

         15  the privilege for ten years to have chaired this

         16  Committee, I have been through the seat belt war

         17  before. What appeared to be the easy one getting

         18  seat belts mandated in taxis took an awfully long

         19  time but we were successful on that. We have gone

         20  round and round on school buses, but it has given me

         21  an understanding, and again, I think the opening

         22  statement by the Chair was good to point out that

         23  there are different ramifications, you have to

         24  consider whether you can actually retrofit old buses

         25  and certain buses are different, older ones from
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          2  other, or the newer ones, not the brand new ones, or

          3  whether the mandate should just be for new buses.

          4  There are different kinds of configurations, when

          5  you consider whether you should have seat belts on

          6  school buses, there was a major discussion on

          7  barring standees on school buses, which is to me a

          8  ridiculous discussion to have even had, not to

          9  mandate every kid to be able to sit in the seat, or

         10  not to have standees on long distance buses, I think

         11  certainly is a no brainer. You don't want somebody

         12  on a hurdling bus or even a bus that is within the

         13  proper speed going for a couple of hours on an

         14  interstate highway. On the other hand, I believe you

         15  have to treat the MTA buses intra-city perhaps

         16  differently.

         17                 So, that having been said, there are

         18  certain things, though, that I think there should be

         19  zero tolerance for, and I would like to hear some

         20  discussions from you particularly concerning drug

         21  and alcohol abuse, and when drivers have been found

         22  to have been abusers and what your position is on

         23  that.

         24                 The other side of the coin, having

         25  talked to some of the drivers, I understand on long
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          2  distance hauls when there is particularly bad

          3  weather, they are not necessarily in the best of

          4  shape to make the return trip immediately, and I

          5  have heard some complaints from drivers saying that

          6  they are stressed out and maxed out as far as their

          7  ability to drive and have to turn right around, for

          8  instance, from Atlantic City and return.

          9                 So, I think those are two areas that

         10  I would like to hear you discuss, and whoever wants

         11  to go first, that will be fine.

         12                 MR. WEISBERG: Speaking for my

         13  company, and I guess for many of my colleagues, we

         14  have a zero tolerance level with drug and alcohol

         15  abuse.

         16                 We drug test upon hiring, we drug

         17  test upon suspicion, we drug test following an

         18  accident and we drug test randomly. So, a driver

         19  could get tested four times in a year for whatever

         20  reason, or he could get tested once in a year. I

         21  don't think anybody has a tolerance having somebody

         22  on drugs.

         23                 You have an option in your drug and

         24  alcohol policy to rehabilitate a driver, you have a

         25  driver voluntarily go to a program and graduate the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            63

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  program and get a clean bill of health and you have

          3  the option of hiring that driver back if you so

          4  desire. That is an option you have.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: How many

          6  times do they have the option to be rehabbed?

          7                 MR. WEISBERG: I think that is up to

          8  the individual company. There is no mandate on that.

          9                 I don't know anybody in my personal

         10  experience who has ever hired anybody back who

         11  failed a drug test. People come to me even with a

         12  suspicion, well we had an argument with another

         13  company and they claimed drug test -- once I hear

         14  drug test, they don't get through the door. I think

         15  the industry has a zero tolerance for drug and

         16  alcohol.

         17                 As far as I think when you are

         18  talking about hours of operation, you are being very

         19  specific about Atlantic City runs is what it sounded

         20  like to me.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: I just

         22  mentioned that because it was mentioned to me

         23  specifically. But I am not talking just about hours,

         24  I am talking about weather conditions, road

         25  conditions, et cetera. There is a big difference
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          2  driving two or three hours in bright sunshine during

          3  the day than driving during sleet and snow in the

          4  middle of the night.

          5                 MR. WEISBERG: I would say that

          6  responsible companies would -- I would welcome the

          7  opportunity to put my coach in the garage and leave

          8  it there and give my client an opportunity to

          9  reschedule. I have no desire to operate in bad

         10  weather.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Well, that is

         12  not what I am saying. I am saying if it is inclement

         13  weather but not whether where you pull the coach

         14  off, do you have some kind of differentiation as to

         15  whether a driver can continue to drive after he has

         16  driven one leg of a difficult trip?

         17                 MR. WEISBERG: I think it has to be

         18  the drives professional discretion, and you have to

         19  give a driver the professional discretion over his

         20  vehicle. He is the last word in the safety.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Yes, but that

         22  doesn't work when you are keeping schedules. I think

         23  it has to be some kind of more clearcut policy from

         24  the companies.

         25                 MR. WEISBERG: Are we talking about
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          2  line run operation? Because there is a difference.

          3                 In Charter you are not keeping the

          4  schedule. A charter you can adjust your itinerary as

          5  you need to be.

          6                 I don't know any --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Well, to some

          8  extent you are keeping a schedule because you are

          9  returning the people perhaps the same day.

         10                 MR. WEISBERG: I don't think we would

         11  move a coach in bad weather. That means ice and

         12  considerable snow.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: You are not

         14  answering my question.

         15                 MR. WEISBERG: I am trying to.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Maybe I am

         17  not making myself clear.

         18                 I am not talking about ice and snow

         19  when nobody should be on the road. I am talking

         20  about after having a very difficult trip for a

         21  couple of hours and the driver is supposed to return

         22  shortly after that on the return trip, and there is

         23  a difference in the tiredness and the energy and

         24  whatever, the condition of the driver, as opposed as

         25  if he had just driven two and a half or three or
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          2  four hours in bright sunshine.

          3                 Is there a back-up driver? Is there a

          4  situation where you have back-up drivers and you

          5  think about difficult driving as opposed to just the

          6  every day good driving?

          7                 MR. WEISBERG: Well, there are

          8  options. Option one is if it is close enough we can

          9  send another driver out. If it is not close enough,

         10  being an Association member I would naturally call

         11  one of my association companies and say my driver is

         12  exhausted or my driver is sick, he has a

         13  stomachache, he can't drive, can you assign me a

         14  driver to take over our trip? And we have done that

         15  on occasion.

         16                 We even had a situation where a guy

         17  was stopped at the border and didn't have his

         18  paperwork in order in Niagra Falls and we had to get

         19  a driver from a local company, it does happen. But

         20  it is his discretion. He obviously has to alert me

         21  that he is tired. He is a human being, if he doesn't

         22  alert me he is tired, obviously I can't act on it. I

         23  would act on it, yes.

         24                 Our policy is anything -- it doesn't

         25  matter what the cost factor is, if it means we have
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          2  to make the coach safe or the driver safe, we just

          3  do it. And it rarely happens.

          4                 I think part of this fatigue factor

          5  has to do with your entire week of scheduling your

          6  drivers, what are you doing in terms of, you know,

          7  giving the driver ample rest, giving him days off,

          8  and that is really what the factor -- it is a

          9  cumulative thing.

         10                 Professional drivers can drive three

         11  hours and then turn around and drive three hours

         12  back with a little break. They don't really have a

         13  big problem with that. I think the problem lies when

         14  you have done it too many days in a row.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: I hear your

         16  answer and it is a common sense answer. Frankly, it

         17  is not precise enough for me and I think there are

         18  certain conditions that you could be more precise

         19  about where you need to replace the driver, without

         20  them coming to you and saying, gee, I just had this

         21  horrendous drive in ice and snow, et cetera, and

         22  while the coach may be able to go back, I am not

         23  able to go back. I am not entirely satisfied, quite

         24  frankly, for the answer. But I would like to hear

         25  from the industry, particularly about alcohol and
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          2  drug abuse and also the point that I have just

          3  raised.

          4                 MR. LITTLER: Well, I can respond I

          5  think to the first, on the drug and alcohol, I

          6  probably am not the best one to respond to the

          7  second, since I do not own a bus company or run a

          8  bus company.

          9                 But on the first note, one of the big

         10  loopholes in the whole drug and alcohol test program

         11  was the inability of one company to get accurate

         12  information relating to a driver that they were

         13  hiring who had worked for another company.

         14                 Last year when T21 was finalized in

         15  congress, we closed that loophole. What we did was

         16  provided operators with liability protection for

         17  sharing of factual information regarding drivers. We

         18  worked very hard to get that, so that one company

         19  will know what they are getting when they are hiring

         20  somebody because they are required to check that

         21  information, but there was a great reluctance to

         22  share that information because of the concern of a

         23  lawsuit being filed on the part of the driver who

         24  didn't get the job that they were required to.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Are there any
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          2  other loopholes?

          3                 MR. LITTLER: That was the big one,

          4  and that is the one that we are hoping will really

          5  make a difference in determining that you are

          6  getting quality when you are hiring. That has not

          7  been finished through the rule-making process. We

          8  expect that the federal highways will initiate the

          9  final rules on that in the near future.

         10                 There were a number of other safety

         11  portions of that bill that we are again hopeful will

         12  make a difference.

         13                 Federal highways is now in the

         14  process of changing the hours and service rules.

         15  Now, the rules that apply to scheduling and to how

         16  many hours a driver can drive and how many hours

         17  that they can remain on duty have been in place

         18  since 1937, obviously I think as Councilman Stabile

         19  said, the world has changed a great deal since 1937.

         20  The problem that our industry faces is they spent a

         21  great deal of money, over $3 million studying hours

         22  of service rules and driver fatigue as it relates to

         23  the trucking industry. Bus drivers are not truck

         24  drivers, they are a different world. We had not been

         25  studied. Again, we don't know, and we have gone back
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          2  to the secretary, we have gone up to capital hill

          3  and we have gone with the message that we are

          4  carrying passengers, we aren't carrying fruit and

          5  vegetables, we are not carrying anything but what is

          6  supposed to be the greatest resource in the country.

          7  We should have a certain priority here to determine

          8  what is happening within our industry, but because

          9  it is a small industry, we don't get viewed the same

         10  as the enormous trucking industry.

         11                 So, again, we don't know what is

         12  going to come out of those rules, we don't know

         13  whether they are going to be appropriate to our

         14  industry or detrimental.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Well, I hear

         16  you, and let me just leave you with one thought.

         17                 We have discussed the need to do

         18  studies on seat belts, on what kind of seat belts, I

         19  have brought up whether you can retrofit or not

         20  retrofit -- we all know that studies can put off

         21  decisions for a very long time, or studies can be

         22  speeded along, lobbied for and there can be

         23  proactivism both from an industry and from

         24  individual companies. And I think we would all

         25  charge you with the proactivist position, because we
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          2  don't want to sit here six months from now or a year

          3  from now or two years from now and hear the same

          4  thing. There are studies, we need to have them done

          5  -- yes, I think we all can agree that studies, more

          6  accurate ones need to be done, but you can play a

          7  big role in making sure that that happens sooner

          8  rather than later.

          9                 MR. LITTLER: For the past three years

         10  we have been very active in working with the NTSB in

         11  trying to determine what passenger protection and

         12  what best worthiness issues are involved, start the

         13  process. When the recommendations come from the NTSB

         14  towards the USDOT it will carry a great deal more

         15  weight than ours.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Well, the

         17  when is what is important.

         18                 MR. LITTLER: Well, it is, and they

         19  report to congress and we have worked and will

         20  continue to work with the safety board and we would

         21  like to continue to work with Council.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Just stand by,

         23  because we are taking a vote on another issue here.

         24  Just a roll call on, we have before us three bills

         25  that we should disapprove -- two bills, one is being
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          2  withdrawn -- and that will disapprove terminations

          3  by the TLC to approve base stations licenses.

          4                 The one that is being withdrawn is PS

          5  Management. The one that we are turning down is

          6  Sam's Car Service in Staten Island, and the second

          7  one is Andrea Management.

          8                 So, we are asking people for a yes

          9  vote to disapprove.

         10                 Okay, roll call.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Dear.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Eisland.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: McCaffrey.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Mr.

         17  Chairman, I ask to be temporarily excused to explain

         18  my vote.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Go ahead.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: In terms of

         21  the case on Andrea, I am particularly concerned

         22  about what has been their long record in terms of

         23  illegal street hales, which obviously flies in the

         24  convention of the regulations and the legislation.

         25                 The fact of the matter is that they
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          2  have not been the good corporate citizen who

          3  deserves to have a base station license extended to

          4  it. We have supplied documentation from the agency,

          5  TLC, concerning violations. We have asked for

          6  additional information and have not received it, and

          7  then in light of all of those considerations, I have

          8  asked that this application be rejected. I vote aye

          9  on the resolution.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Continue the roll.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Freed.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Miller.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Aye.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Rodriguez.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Stabile.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: By a vote of

         20  seven in the affirmative, none in the negative, no

         21  abstentions, all items are passed.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I just want the

         23  record to show that we still have the authority if

         24  we have to reconsider the bills, even after they

         25  have been sent to the Mayor for his action, we can
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          2  recall it.

          3                 So what we are waiting for is

          4  information on the other two that was just passed

          5  now, and if we do get that information, we can

          6  recall these bills to the Council. So, either by

          7  tomorrow or before, we have this information before

          8  the vote on the full floor, I have asked that it be

          9  taken off the floor, and if not, before the Mayor

         10  signs it we can also recall the two bills.

         11                 So, if that happens, we will do so.

         12                 Okay, continue.

         13                 Next is Council Member Rodriguez who

         14  had some questions.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Thank you,

         16  Mr. Chair.

         17                 I am sorry, I missed some of what was

         18  going on before, so some of these questions you may

         19  have answered already and I want to apologize in

         20  advance for that.

         21                 We were talking about the NSTD, I

         22  guess the report that is coming out in the next

         23  month or two.

         24                 MR. LITTLER: Right.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And I guess
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          2  you made some references in your testimony that

          3  people at the NTSD had said that I guess what is

          4  going to come out of that report, and correct me if

          5  I am wrong, and feel free to interrupt, what is

          6  going to come out of that report is that seat belts

          7  don't contribute to keeping safety or preventing

          8  fatalities; did I understand that correctly?

          9                 MR. LITTLER: No, that is not correct.

         10  They have not made that determination at all. No.

         11                 The National Highway Traffic Safety

         12  Administration, which sets the safety performance

         13  standards for vehicles has explicitly determined

         14  that there is not a safety benefit to seat belts in

         15  buses.

         16                 The NTSD is an independent agency

         17  that reports to congress. They made no such

         18  determination.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay. I

         20  thought I got that from your testimony.

         21                 MR. LITTLER: The National Highway

         22  Traffic Safety Administration and the NTSB sound

         23  very similar but they are very different agencies.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And the

         25  letter that you are referring to, was that study
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          2  done in 1974? On page two of the letter you guys

          3  received?

          4                 MR. LITTLER: No, that letter was sent

          5  to me when I worked for a motorcoach manufacturing

          6  company. That letter came to me in 1992 when the New

          7  York State Legislature proposed to mandate seat

          8  belts and there was a question at that time of

          9  mandating the seat belt and to what standard it

         10  would be mandated, if it was going to be mandated to

         11  a passenger vehicle level, which is a very light

         12  vehicle, it meant reinforcing the structure of the

         13  motorcoach to the point where it would be too heavy

         14  for the roadways.

         15                 But we questioned this at that point

         16  regarding that policy, and I wasn't that familiar

         17  with the National Highway Traffic and Motor Vehicle

         18  Safety Act of '66 that empowered the DOT on this,

         19  and they sent back a three-page legal opinion where

         20  on page two, fourth paragraph, they state NHTSA

         21  expressly determined that there is not a safety need

         22  for safety belts or another type of crash, occupant

         23  crash protection at the seating positions, meaning

         24  the passenger seating positions.

         25                 Two weeks ago, in the New Jersey Star
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          2  Ledger, the paper called NHTSA to see where they sat

          3  on this position and they virtually read the same

          4  statement verbatim into the paper.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Right. But

          6  right after you end at these seating positions, it

          7  says, C39 FR27585, July 30th, 1974.

          8                 MR. LITTLER: Right. That was where

          9  they made their determination, back in 1974.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: That is

         11  what I was asking.

         12                 MR. LITTLER: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: This is I

         14  guess as a result of studies or things that were

         15  done in 1974?

         16                 MR. LITTLER: Oh, I know that they

         17  have not conducted crash, actual dynamic crash

         18  tests, either rollover tests or dynamic barrier

         19  collision tests, that has never been done. Not by

         20  the federal government. It has been done privately,

         21  back in 1964 I believe there were tests done which

         22  at that time seat belts were evaluated in General

         23  Motors produced coaches.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Do you know

         25  if I guess other countries have done any tests of
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          2  the ones you are referring to?

          3                 MR. LITTLER: Yes. Yes, as a matter of

          4  fact Australia already requires belts in

          5  motorcoaches. They recently had their first high

          6  speed collision involving a motorcoach and a heavy

          7  truck.  The most interesting thing that came out of

          8  that collision was because of the strength

          9  requirements in the seats, and they had to reinforce

         10  the seat backs to withstand the load supplied by the

         11  shoulder belts, the one woman who was not wearing

         12  the shoulder portion of the belt and was only

         13  wearing the lap portion of the belt was killed when

         14  her head and neck hit the seat back, which we found

         15  particularly interesting, and again a great cause of

         16  concern when they required the belts it came out of

         17  two serious crashes in Australia. They mandated the

         18  belts and then went back and designed a standard

         19  that fit a passenger car.

         20                 Now, while they had to put tremendous

         21  strength in the seat backs, they did not develop a

         22  test that would require the bus structure to have to

         23  be reinforced. They set a crash pulse to such a

         24  level that it didn't require frame modifications.

         25                 Now in Europe, at the end of this
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          2  year they are going to require lap belts only.

          3                 Now, given what came out of the

          4  Australian findings, and a high back seat in the

          5  motorcoach and a lap belt only and they have a

          6  serious collision, there is a great question as to

          7  what is going to happen to the people using those

          8  belts. We don't know the answers to that. We would

          9  certainly like to know.

         10                 We have been told by many years, the

         11  NTSB, NHTSA, indicated that departmentalization in

         12  motorcoaches in the majority of crashes works very

         13  well. All of the indications that we have seen it

         14  does work very well. The one area that we see

         15  fatalities occurring, however, is in the case of the

         16  recent New Jersey action, is a rollover type

         17  collision. We don't have the answers for that and in

         18  that particular case maybe a belt system or some

         19  other means of keeping people in the bus would be of

         20  value.

         21                 But somebody has to look at it and

         22  study it. Somebody that has the authority to change

         23  the rules.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: That was my

         25  initial question.
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          2                 The question was -- I know that the

          3  Europeans are starting to require seat belts, and I

          4  read some information with regard to the

          5  Australians, were those two -- I guess

          6  implementations of the seat belt law, were they as a

          7  result of studies that they did? Did those countries

          8  perform the studies that you are saying were never

          9  performed in this country? And as a result of those

         10  studies, did they come to the conclusion that seat

         11  belts were okay. And even though in this one

         12  instance which you are describing, I am asking were

         13  there tests done in those countries, and did those

         14  tests arrive to a conclusion that, yes, seat belts

         15  are a deterrent?

         16                 MR. LITTLER: The European study I

         17  will speak to first. They have had standards in

         18  place for seat belt implementation, lap belt

         19  implementation, in motorcoaches since the early

         20  1960s. It is only now that they are requiring a much

         21  lower crash force level in those 6.6 G --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Right.

         23                 MR. LITTLER: -- In those seats than

         24  the current 20 G standard, or in Australia 22 G

         25  standard. Again, who is right? I believe that the
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          2  European force levels are accurate given the weight

          3  of a motorcoach.

          4                 The lap belt, as came out of the NTSB

          5  hearings this summer, was indicated to be exactly

          6  the wrong way to go. It is 30-year old technology,

          7  if it was good why did they go to a lap shoulder

          8  belt in a passenger car, for the same reason that

          9  you pivot from the hip point.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay.

         11                 MR. LITTLER: Now, the Australian and

         12  the European regulations came about after several

         13  horrendous crashes. Now, one of the things that they

         14  allow in Europe is you don't actually have to go and

         15  crash test the vehicle. You can build a computer

         16  model, and that meets your certification

         17  requirements. We don't believe that that is

         18  sufficient. You need to have crash test dummies, you

         19  need to have the instrumentation, you have to

         20  understand what is happening inside the body.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Now I am

         22  going to ask you a question that you may not know

         23  the answer to. Do we know the fatality rate, or the

         24  percentages of fatalities in Europe?

         25                 MR. LITTLER: They are much higher
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          2  than they are here.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: They are

          4  much higher than here?

          5                 MR. LITTLER: They are much higher

          6  than they are here.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Let me just

          8  ask another question. Do we know the approximate

          9  cost of retrofitting an older bus, or the

         10  approximate additional cost of making new buses with

         11  seat belts?

         12                 MR. LITTLER: Well, we know the cost

         13  of new seating systems for a coach, if you had to

         14  change out all of the seats and have lap shoulder

         15  tight belts and we don't have the seat in

         16  production, they are not commercially available, but

         17  we anticipate at a minimum $20,000 I would think

         18  would be close.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: If they

         20  were in production. If it was a standard --

         21                 MR. LITTLER: If they were in

         22  production, then that is what it would cost you to

         23  go out and change the seats in a motorcoach.

         24                 If you were buying it as a new

         25  auction, it would be several thousand dollars. The
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          2  problem that you run into with retrofitting of a

          3  bus, the actual just drilling into a seat, is you

          4  weaken the structure.

          5                 So, nobody has ever recommended

          6  modifying a seat or just simply drilling into a seat

          7  because you are going to weaken the value of the

          8  seat and possibly any value you get but the seats

          9  would be lost in a crash.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Can you get

         11  any closer with several thousand, is it 2,000,

         12  3,000, 18,000?

         13                 MR. LITTLER: For which?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: For new

         15  buses that would have seat belts?

         16                 MR. LITTLER: The cost of --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: You said

         18  several thousand?

         19                 MR. LITTLER: Oh, I think about $2,000

         20  I believe was close to what some of the seating

         21  manufacturers have testified to, the cost of the

         22  increase, the modifications to the seat frame, the

         23  cost of the belt systems.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: There are

         25  buses available now that you can purchase with the
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          2  seat belt, the seat restraint systems?

          3                 MR. LITTLER: There are several

          4  European coaches that have I understand seat belt

          5  options available but they are not available in

          6  North America and they are a lap belt only. There

          7  are no three-point belt systems available, apart

          8  from the European seat which, or the Australian seat

          9  which has that very rigid back, and of course if you

         10  are not wearing a belt and you hit that rigid back,

         11  it is like hitting a wall.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, thank

         13  you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Council Member

         15  Freed.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you, Mr.

         17  Chair.

         18                 Well, in listening to the last series

         19  of questions, initially I was going to add, like I

         20  think everyone else up here, the kind of incredulity

         21  about not wanting to have seat belts and not

         22  thinking that they would be safer, and I understand

         23  what you are saying about waiting for the NTSD to

         24  come up with a recommendation.

         25                 But what concerned me is, if I
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          2  understood you, you said that there are no tests

          3  being done right now in America?

          4                 MR. LITTLER: That's correct. There

          5  are tests being conducted, or the National Highway

          6  Traffic Safety Administration received monies and

          7  direction from congress to conduct a three-year

          8  study on school buses out of the T21 bill, there was

          9  nothing in there that directed them to look at

         10  coach-type buses.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: So what

         12  concerns me is if you are waiting for

         13  recommendations from them and they are not even

         14  testing on this, then what kind of length of time in

         15  talking about until we get some judgment on the

         16  right type of belts or if we need belts?

         17                 MR. LITTLER: That is a very good and

         18  very valid question.

         19                 The recommendation that comes from

         20  the Safety Board, if NHTSA looks at it and

         21  determines that they want to conduct testing, by the

         22  time the testing is conducted, by the time a

         23  rule-making goes through years go by.

         24                 From a point of concern of the

         25  industry, you are building a vehicle that has a life
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          2  expectancy of 20 to 25 years. If they don't do this

          3  right, their mistake is going to be on the road for

          4  20 or 25 years, if not longer. And it is going to

          5  take a long time to replace the equipment as it

          6  comes in. So, they have got one shot at it, whatever

          7  they choose, whatever they do, if they determine if

          8  there is a need for a passenger protection

          9  enhancement, they have got to do it right the first

         10  time, which means that the study is critical.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Except there is

         12  no study. Would it not behoove the industry to maybe

         13  go out and do some studies on its own?

         14                 MR. LITTLER: The problem that we have

         15  with conducting crash tests on a vehicle that has a

         16  new cost of $400,000, when you have to test every

         17  vehicle on a rollover type of test, on a barrier

         18  collision test, we are talking huge amounts of money

         19  well outside of that that the industry can afford.

         20  The government tests school buses, they do fund

         21  this, this has been funded before. We really need

         22  the same kind of consideration because we are also

         23  carrying passengers. Maybe they are not school

         24  children. We believe that they have the same value.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: And some of

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            87

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  them may be school children. In that case maybe it

          3  would also behoove the industry to start lobbying to

          4  get these tests to be done.

          5                 MR. LITTLER: We have been working

          6  through the NTSB to do just that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Because let me

          8  just tell you, one of the things that concerns me

          9  since I have been listening to this, in 1988 I was

         10  in an accident while I was sitting in the back of a

         11  car, and if it weren't for that I probably wouldn't

         12  have been paying attention, but I did not have a

         13  belt on, and I am very glad I didn't because it

         14  happened to have been a high speed head-on

         15  collision, and right after I got home from the

         16  hospital I was watching something on TV where Ford

         17  Motor Company was being sued because in point of

         18  fact, in a high speed head on collision if you only

         19  have a lap belt on, nine times out of ten the

         20  passenger with the lap belt in the back seat is

         21  paralyzed.

         22                 MR. LITTLER: That's right.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Because it is

         24  the same kind of quick forward, flat and then back

         25  again. And I guess a little bit like the Australian
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          2  buses but obviously you are not hitting the back of

          3  the seat in front of you --

          4                 MR. LITTLER: You accelerate around

          5  the hip point and actually the speed of your head

          6  and neck increases over what it would if you weren't

          7  belted.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Right, the

          9  whole kind of whiplash and you actually get a higher

         10  injury, and Ford was being sued on this. So, I am

         11  kind of chagrined to hear that some of these other

         12  buses, the European buses or the Australian buses

         13  are only using a lap belt because it would seem to

         14  me that you would almost have to have a lap and a

         15  shoulder belt. And certainly if you look at some of

         16  the lawsuits and some of the tests that have been

         17  done on cars, you will see that there is that

         18  physical problem.

         19                 MR. LITTLER: This was the obvious

         20  concern that we had at the hearing last summer that

         21  the Safety Board held, and that is that there is no

         22  consistency. There is no consistency around the

         23  country, around the world. And as I say, if we are

         24  going to protect people, we have to do it right, and

         25  we need some direction in this, and NHTSA is the
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          2  agency that is supposed to establish vehicle safety

          3  performance standards. All of our buses have safety

          4  devices throughout that are required to be in place

          5  by that agency and yet they have taken this position

          6  that this is not where they want to go. They do not

          7  believe there is a safety benefit and you will see

          8  what the Safety Board recommendations determine.

          9                 But be absolutely assured, we will

         10  continue to work on that and we would look very

         11  favorably on being able to work with this Committee.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Well, maybe we

         13  should amend our resolution to also suggest that

         14  they start conducting these tests.

         15                 The only final thing I will say,

         16  though, and it really concerns me, particularly when

         17  we talk about -- because the federal level will be

         18  setting these and the question about lobbying in the

         19  federal level, the same program that I was watching

         20  where I learned about the difference between the lap

         21  belts and the shoulder belts, also pointed out at

         22  that time that the big three car manufacturers had

         23  met with President Nixon way back when and convinced

         24  him that there was no particular safety in seat

         25  belts at all at one point, and certainly in the
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          2  shoulder belts, and it was just a bunch of

          3  environmental crazies who were really pushing for

          4  it.

          5                 So, that does concern me because

          6  lobbying at all levels when politics get involved,

          7  sometimes safety does go out the window, which is

          8  why I am very concerned and think it really would

          9  behoove the industry to really put a big push on

         10  every chance you get to suggest that they start

         11  doing those safety tests.

         12                 MR. LITTLER: I have a copy of the New

         13  York State Senate Report that was generated back in

         14  1993 on the issue of seat belts, and I have it over

         15  at my seat, I wonder if I could just get it and read

         16  one of the recommendations that came out of that

         17  report on the issue of testing and seat belts?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Maybe if you could

         19  just paraphrase it.

         20                 MR. LITTLER: What came out of the

         21  report was a recommendation that the State

         22  Legislature memorialized to the National Highway

         23  Safety Administration the desire of the legislature

         24  to have seat belts or study the merit of

         25  incorporating seat belts into coaches and conduct
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          2  the study and the scientific testing necessary.

          3                 I do not know whether that letter

          4  went from the legislature to NHTSA, and if it did

          5  what happened to it, but that is something that you

          6  might, if you wish to address the State Legislature

          7  you might ask them to restate that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay. Well, it

          9  would seem to me it was probably a good idea, I

         10  would hope that not just here in the City but the

         11  State, and I would hope that a number of states

         12  would get behind pushing them very strongly to have

         13  these tests, because clearly, as long as you can

         14  have that as an excuse to stand by, there isn't

         15  going to be any work done, and the last thing we

         16  want to see is more and more buses roll out without

         17  proper safety. Because I think that this thing has

         18  come to a critical position where people really are

         19  saying that we want as much safety as we can get,

         20  and clearly seat belts, and I would definitely say

         21  shoulder/lap belts are necessary to protect the

         22  public.

         23                 MR. LITTLER: We certainly understand

         24  from the public perspective that it appears to send

         25  a mixed message, that how can seat belts be good in
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          2  my passenger car and why aren't they in the bus? And

          3  certainly we have had difficulty in the past

          4  explaining the concept of compartmentalization; I

          5  mean how do you spell it, let alone --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: You know what?

          7  Even if --

          8                 MR. LITTLER: Egg crating is the best

          9  analogy I can come up with.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: But the truth

         11  is, even if you buy compartmentalization, there is

         12  still, it seems like why not go the extra mile, what

         13  are we talking about, $2,000 extra in the new buses?

         14                 MR. LITTLER: It has never been a cost

         15  issue. On this one it is not the cost issue.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Right.

         17                 MR. LITTLER: It is a matter of not

         18  knowing through the lack of empirical data or

         19  testing to determine what is the best thing to do.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Well, to get

         21  back to my comment, that is why I am really, really

         22  concerned and upset that that testing isn't being

         23  done. Because all that means is we are talking about

         24  another generation of buses that aren't going to

         25  have the protection that I think everyone probably
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          2  at least feels needs some kind of additional

          3  protection with the shoulder/lap belts.

          4                 MR. LITTLER: Well, testing to

          5  determine whether it is a safe, the safest vehicle

          6  in its present condition or whether other passenger

          7  enhancements are required, again, I agree. And I

          8  think that the Safety Board, we are expecting this

          9  report out very soon. We are hopeful that

         10  recommendations in there will be meaningful, and

         11  that they will be listened to.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I want to thank you

         14  both for a very candid testimony and honest

         15  testimony, and understand our frustration. I want to

         16  believe that you share that frustration, and I would

         17  hope that if that was the case that you would

         18  represent all of the industry, and obviously you

         19  don't, and we have to see to it that we can bring as

         20  many people in on board and not wait until

         21  government acts and enacts any legislation, because

         22  we are concerned, again 2,000 buses, 3,000 buses,

         23  5,000 buses, that are traveling here from the City

         24  of New York outside, not only to Atlantic City,

         25  taking our children to camps, taking our seniors on
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          2  trips, taking people to trips, overnight trips, and

          3  obviously it's a way of, you know, means of

          4  transportation, and we are concerned about public

          5  safety. And if everybody, what I would want to say,

          6  would follow some of your better bus companies, we

          7  wouldn't have these issues that are before us today.

          8                 Because I think that if you look at

          9  the accident that did take place, a lot of it is

         10  negligence on the part of the people who are driving

         11  and the companies that were out there, both

         12  equipment, drivers, speeding, not, you know, good

         13  equipment, drivers not up to par and probably not

         14  someone who we would like to be driving our seniors

         15  and our children.

         16                 So, I hope that we can move forward

         17  on this, and I hope that we can bring back a message

         18  to your members. But we are going to be here again

         19  to still press this issue and await the report of

         20  the National Transportation Board to see where they

         21  go with vis-a-vis, obviously the issue of seat belts

         22  which is what we are so concerned about.

         23                 MR. WEISBERG: Mr. Chairman, I want to

         24  thank you for the opportunity, and remind you that I

         25  am a local and if you need my assistance with this
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          2  in any manner, shape or form, feel free to get in

          3  touch with me.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: We will reach out

          5  to you, absolutely.

          6                 MR. LITTLER: And I will return at any

          7  time that this Committee wishes, or if you need any

          8  assistance, please don't hesitate to call on me or

          9  the association. We share your desire to have the

         10  entire industry as members.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay. Thank you

         12  very much.

         13                 MR. LITTLER: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Larry Hanley.

         15                 MR. HANLEY: Good afternoon. I am

         16  Larry Hanley. I am the President of the Amalgamated

         17  Transit Union, Local 726, representing workers who

         18  work for the Transit Authority, as well as for a

         19  private paratransit operator in Staten Island.

         20                 To begin with, the question of

         21  regulating bus drivers themselves, over the last

         22  decade there have been enumerable new regulations

         23  that have been put in place by the federal

         24  government and by the state, including commercial

         25  drivers' license and random drug testing, much of
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          2  which you have heard about today.

          3                 What you have not heard about today,

          4  the underlying cause, I believe, of the accidents

          5  both in New Jersey and on Flatbush Avenue last week,

          6  with the van industry and the bus industry, is that

          7  in 1982 the federal government deregulated our

          8  industry. At the same time they deregulated the air

          9  line industry and the trucking industry, and the

         10  results have been equally as bad, particularly in

         11  the airline industry.

         12                 Right now there are three times as

         13  many bus companies operating in the United States,

         14  as there were in 1982. The same event happened in

         15  the airline industry where numerous non-union and

         16  particular airlines sprung up over night and

         17  resulted, this resulted in, among other things,

         18  lowering weight standards in the industries, and

         19  more and more accidents.

         20                 You are all familiar with the Value

         21  Jet accident that occurred in Florida, and I am here

         22  to tell you that the accidents in New Jersey are

         23  related to the same policies, the government

         24  policies, that have created a deregulated

         25  transportation industry.
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          2                 The industry, the bus industry, and

          3  this is something you will not hear from owners or

          4  their representatives, in fact in many ways as

          5  responsible operators, but also as a result of this

          6  huge increase in the number of companies, is

          7  populated by companies that run sweatshops on

          8  wheels. It is the same thing that is happening in

          9  the needle trades in this City and in this country

         10  and around the world, many owners are unscrupulous

         11  and are employing people at lower and lower wages,

         12  and the New York Times reported, and I have both

         13  stories here, on the 29th of December, and again on

         14  the 31st of December, there were two stories that

         15  really got into the guts of what happened in going

         16  to Atlantic City, and what the drivers are saying,

         17  those are the people that you are not hearing from

         18  today, this is one bus driver who says I get paid $8

         19  an hour to drive a $338,000 bus. He said I could

         20  flip burgers for $8 an hour.

         21                 With the case, once again, this is

         22  from the 31st New York Times story, in both cases,

         23  two accidents, nobody said the buses were speeding.

         24  What the passengers were saying is the drivers were

         25  sleeping at the wheel.
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          2                 Now, there is a reason why they were

          3  sleeping at the wheel, and the reason is, once again

          4  in the New York Times story of the 29th, most of the

          5  drivers -- these were drivers that were interviewed

          6  in Atlantic City, most of the drivers interviewed

          7  today said they earned $8 an hour or less and that

          8  they work long weeks to bolster their incomes.

          9                 Charter bus drivers typically work

         10  longer hours than drivers in municipal operations.

         11  This is the problem that is generating these

         12  accidents and it is the one thing that has been,

         13  aside from these articles, completely ignored in

         14  this whole story.

         15                 I suggest that you have some hearings

         16  and bring the drivers in. Let's hear about their

         17  stories, let's hear about that, that in order to

         18  make $32,000 a year, in the non-union bus industry,

         19  you need to drive a bus 80 hours a week.

         20                 Let's hear stories about layovers in

         21  Atlantic City and in other places around this

         22  country where drivers have no place to sleep, they

         23  are given eight or ten hours to lay over, just hang

         24  out, and then go back and drive the bus home.

         25                 The governors, one of the good points
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          2  that was made by the industry here today is that

          3  every bus, mechanically the bus can be governed so

          4  that it cannot exceed any speed that the company

          5  wishes it to not exceed. Therefore, if you do have

          6  buses speeding on your highways, you can look at the

          7  companies, because it is the company policy to have

          8  those buses spruced up so the drivers can do 80

          9  miles an hour, in some cases, on our highways.

         10                 I maintain the question here is not

         11  one of reckless drivers but reckless management.

         12  Seat belts are not the answer, maybe straight

         13  jackets are, for the people that are running these

         14  companies. I am serious about that. Seat belts --

         15  you know, we have heard a great deal of technical

         16  testimony here from the industry today, and I have

         17  no reason to think they are wrong. I think the

         18  addition of seat belts is questionable. At this

         19  point the effectiveness of it is questionable.

         20                 And one other thing I want to point

         21  out. Some of the very bus companies, one, Academy,

         22  that was involved in this accident, currently,

         23  today, this morning, drove Staten Island commuters

         24  to work using federal loopholes in the law. They

         25  operate all over Staten Island every single day, as
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          2  does another company, Atlantic Express, and in fact

          3  the Mayor just in the last month has twice postponed

          4  granting franchises, continued franchises to the

          5  existing franchised operators in this City because

          6  the Borough President of Staten Island is engaged in

          7  attempting to get a franchise, a subsidy, for

          8  Academy and Atlantic Express and perhaps some other

          9  bus companies on Staten Island.

         10                 What this is all about is about

         11  driving wages down in our industry, and you can't

         12  have an honest examination of these accidents or of

         13  safety in our industry without examining the

         14  economic reality of part-time work where in fact the

         15  driver may only drive 12 or 20 hours a week, but

         16  they may work 60 hours a week somewhere else, and

         17  there is no record of it.

         18                 You can't have an honest look at the

         19  safety of our industry without looking at your own

         20  legislation for living wages, and saying why should

         21  not living wages be applied to people that operate

         22  $338,000 buses? There is a connection between the

         23  wage rate and the amount of hours people have to

         24  work and that is impacting on the safety of the

         25  people who ride both in our City and elsewhere in
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          2  our state and in our country.

          3                 Don't leave, the industry to police

          4  itself, they won't do it.

          5                 My suggestion is focus on

          6  enforcement, not so much on bus operator regulation,

          7  that's been done exhaustively over the last ten

          8  years. Focus on enforcement of the rules regarding

          9  hours of service. But more importantly, have an

         10  honest examination of how it would be possible,

         11  assuming that each bus company pays $8 an hour, as

         12  was reported in the times, and assuming that the

         13  limit on driving is ten hours a day, which it is in

         14  federal law, then you assume that the average bus

         15  operator who adheres to the law and takes two days

         16  off a week, makes $20,000 a year. That is the

         17  loophole, and that is the loophole that the industry

         18  representatives will not address, because it is the

         19  shame in the industry, it is about our sweatshops.

         20                 So, I urge the Council to really -- I

         21  am grateful that you are looking at this, and I urge

         22  you in the course of your examining it to take a

         23  very close look at labor standards.

         24                 And let me leave you with this just

         25  one thought. Our union was organized nationally
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          2  about 107 years ago, and the first battle we took on

          3  at that time driving trolleys, it was a thing called

          4  the Vestibule Act. The drivers of trollies were

          5  driving out in the front of the trolley, totally

          6  exposed to the elements, freezing weather, and they

          7  were actually freezing to death while driving

          8  trollies, and that was okay.

          9                 The owners, the predecessors to the

         10  people who came up here before, they had a policy

         11  that the horses had to be rested every four hours,

         12  the drivers had to be rested every 12, because it

         13  was cheaper to replace drivers. And our union

         14  nationally has been fighting this kind of bad labor

         15  practice for the last 107 years, and I am telling

         16  you it is not over, and you need to focus on the

         17  entire view of labor relations of wages and of labor

         18  standards in the industry in order to get a hold of

         19  the safety problem. And I thank you very much for

         20  the opportunity to testify.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you.

         22                 This is Charles. Is that the first

         23  name and last name?

         24                 CHARLES: First of all, I think there

         25  has been a lot of wrong information given out here.
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          2  Age of equipment has nothing to do with safety. We

          3  all have to meet the same standards.

          4                 My understanding under federal law,

          5  which a lot of drivers, a lot of companies have a

          6  problem with, is that we drug test a driver, they

          7  come out positive, we have to pay for sending them

          8  to rehabilitation and take them back. And I can tell

          9  you from another point of view, it is not something

         10  that we are very comfortable with.

         11                 I was here during all of the

         12  testimony about the seat belts, 15,000, 20,000

         13  vehicle, and the problem is the only time it does

         14  help is possibly a roll-over accident, when you are

         15  under 40 miles an hour.

         16                 This accident we had in New Jersey

         17  was not a survivable accident. Same speed with a car

         18  you would have similar survivability problems, and

         19  the seats, by twisting the vehicle, the seats were

         20  thrown out of the vehicle with the people, so even

         21  if you has seat belts, it still would not have done

         22  any good.

         23                 The issue on wages, unfortunately

         24  that is the market, everybody wants a brand new bus

         25  and there is very little money left over for you

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            104

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  know drivers, skimming down on the wages.

          3                 Twenty years ago it was a better

          4  paying business. Plus the nature of the charter

          5  business, you are basically a weekend seasonal

          6  business, it is part-time business, it is part-time

          7  employment, and you have a situation where the

          8  Transit Union testified, the City is actually in

          9  competition with private carriers putting them out

         10  of business on Staten Island. The City about two

         11  years ago came here and testified that they wanted

         12  to drop all the express routes because they were

         13  losing ten and twenty-million dollars a year, and

         14  then they turned around at the taxpayers' expense,

         15  thirty, forty-million dollars, they buy buses at

         16  $400,000 a piece, cut the price, cut it eventually

         17  in half, and there is just no way private operators

         18  can possibly compete against them, because even on

         19  the Staten Island situation, even if you run with

         20  nearly a full load, basically what you are doing is

         21  you are paying your expenses during the week so you

         22  have the bus available on the weekends to make some

         23  money, and there is no way in the world the City can

         24  possibly, even if it is not paying for the buses,

         25  even if it is not paying for the insurance, that it
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          2  can possibly make any money charging $2.50 per

          3  person.  Even with a full load, even under their

          4  types of accounting.

          5                 The reason we are all here today is

          6  because a New York City bus driver either made a

          7  mistake or panicked, put on his breaks and tried to

          8  change lanes on ice.  And anybody ought to know, I

          9  don't come from New York City originally, so I have

         10  a little different viewpoint, anybody ought to know

         11  you shouldn't do that. If you do it in your car at

         12  20 miles an hour you are going to spin around.

         13                 I was recently going down the thruway

         14  after a storm, and I can tell you that there were

         15  many cars that passed me back end first, I wish I

         16  had given my camera to somebody that was sitting in

         17  the front seat, he could have brought back some

         18  beautiful pictures of cars passing me back end

         19  first. And I think that somebody had made a

         20  suggestion somewhere in the paper about driver

         21  training, et cetera, et cetera, I think it applies

         22  not only to any driver, car, truck or bus, and

         23  especially with these new front wheel drive cars,

         24  and people are changing lanes, especially in bad

         25  weather, if they don't have both hands on the wheel,
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          2  that thing just starts to turn, it turns around on

          3  you real quick. And it is all over.

          4                 And like I say, we would not be here

          5  -- all of these accidents that have hit the press

          6  in the last -- we have never had a situation in this

          7  industry in 40 or 60 years, there is no more

          8  accidents at all nationwide in a short time period

          9  and especially in one geographic area. And the

         10  common denominator we find on all of them, is they

         11  were wet or ice conditions. The Academy One at Exit

         12  10 also involves a bad interchange design. I have

         13  been on it myself, I am familiar with it, and it

         14  tightens up awful fast, even when you know it is

         15  coming up on you and I am slowing down and everybody

         16  behind me is real upset because this bus is slowing

         17  down, I know that is a bad fast turn. You come under

         18  the bridge and it suddenly turns quick and I think

         19  the driver was probably heading -- he could have

         20  gone the way -- I believe he started heading for

         21  Staten Island and come up that way and then through

         22  normal route up Exit 11 on the Turnpike into the

         23  Holland Tunnel, and I think he turned around and

         24  started the quickest way to the Turnpike, and not

         25  being familiar with that interchange, and like I say
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          2  it is a bad design. Even the State Trooper on the

          3  scene told the press that it is a high accident

          4  area, and I have had cars that came in behind me too

          5  fast and slid right in front of me as I am going

          6  through the interchange myself.

          7                 I wrote some notes very hastily here.

          8  The thing on fatigue, I don't think that is an

          9  issue. The only place you have to watch is when you

         10  are not used to driving at night, and just like

         11  people in cars going down to Atlantic City, every

         12  since Atlantic City opened up they have had a

         13  tremendous number of vehicle accidents, people

         14  falling asleep coming back. It's like Clint Eastwood

         15  said, a man has got to know his limitations, and

         16  when you go down there you should, and I think the

         17  New York Times article did point out some drivers

         18  don't, but a lot of them do take a nap for a couple

         19  of hours.

         20                 Even if you required seat belts,

         21  another issue is who is going to require them to put

         22  them on? The biggest complaint we get in our company

         23  and other companies, and me personally, because I

         24  also drive, is that we tell people to sit down and

         25  be quiet and they don't, and that is the biggest
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          2  complaint: Why are you telling us to sit down and

          3  shut up? We're going to use another company.

          4                 Well, we are telling you to sit down

          5  for your own safety. I have had a tour guide who I

          6  told twice or three times to sit down, to hold onto

          7  something, and she was standing right up front and I

          8  hit the brakes hard and she hit the windshield and

          9  busted the windshield. Fortunately she didn't sue.

         10  She said, yeah, you did tell me, I should have sat

         11  down.

         12                 And putting them in school buses,

         13  when you have somebody who will stand there and make

         14  them put them on, like I say, most of your bus

         15  accidents -- first of all, the industry safety

         16  records over the past 30, 40 years, except for this

         17  year, your normal fatality is four to six a year. I

         18  will bet if you do any research on the accidents,

         19  you will find that practically every one of them was

         20  in the front seat, the person got ejected through

         21  the windshield. That would be the only place where

         22  you would have -- even if you have a smaller

         23  windshield, we saw that van overturn and still that

         24  person got ejected on that.

         25                 The other thing which has not come up
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          2  was, fortunately one of these new foreign buses that

          3  everybody wants to have. We don't operate these

          4  buses, because one, we can't afford it, and, two, we

          5  prefer the American stuff because it is better

          6  built, the brake systems are better. Unfortunately

          7  the City Transit buses are going to the brake system

          8  which is on these foreign buses which, although not

          9  a factor in this accident can create a problem, it

         10  can lock a brake up and cause it to spin and roll.

         11  It is wedge type system which wears, and the

         12  manufacturers tell you you are supposed to change it

         13  every time you change brakes, and I will be that

         14  most people don't.

         15                 It's a high maintenance system, the

         16  theory is it gives a little bit better braking, the

         17  reality in the real world is it creates more

         18  problems than it solves.

         19                 There was some testimony as to the

         20  accident rate in Europe is much higher, I think what

         21  they are referring to is probably fatalities. They

         22  do a lot more charter bus in Europe and more

         23  year-round than they do here, number one.

         24                 Number two, you have a lot of

         25  mountains there and somebody goes through the guard
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          2  rail and the next stop may be 1,000 feet down,

          3  survivability like in this New Jersey accident is 20

          4  to none.

          5                 I guess that basically covers

          6  everything.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you very much

          8  for your testimony.

          9                 This concludes this hearing, and as I

         10  said, we will continue this issue because we want to

         11  hear from the bus companies that are transporting

         12  our students, transporting our children, our seniors

         13  to many, many different points of interest. I just

         14  want to make sure that they are safe and we have the

         15  responsibility to see that these people are safe.

         16                 Thank you very much.

         17                 (Hearing concluded at 3:30 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 19th day of January 1999.
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                                   ---------------------
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          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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